
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PROCLAMATION: OHIO VOLUNTEER CHALLENGE: FEED OHIO 2013 
 
 PROCLAMATION: NATIONAL PREPAREDNESS MONTH IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 
 
      

              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the August 8, 2013 Piqua City Commission Worksession and the  
August 20, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting  

 
2. RES. NO. R-115-13 

A Resolution of appreciation for the Public Service of Kevin Grogean as a City Employee 
 

3. RES. NO. R-116-13 
A Resolution of appreciation for the Public Service of Wil Benson as a City Employee 
 

    OLD BUSINESS 
 

4. ORD. NO. 10-13 (3rd Reading) 
An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement assessments  
 

5. ORD. NO. 11-13 (3rd Reading) 
An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay the cost of Demolition Assessments per terms of 
Moving Ohio Forward Grant Agreement 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

6. RES. NO. R-117-13 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for  
professional engineering services as related to the Miami River Interceptor Siphon Line  

    improvements 
 

7. RES. NO.R-118-13 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Finfrock Construction 
Co., Inc. for construction of the Ellerman, Fisher, Grant and Downing Water Distribution 
Improvements 
 
 



 2

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
ReDO Piqua Update – Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 

ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 
THURSDAY AUGUST 8, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met in a City Commission Work Session at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal 
Government Complex Commission Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Vice Mayor Vogt 
called the meeting to order.  Present were Commissioners Terry, Martin, and Wilson. Absent: 
Mayor Fess.  Also present: City Manager Gary Huff, Bill Murphy Economic Development 
Director/Assistant City Manager, Law Director Stacy Wall, and Finance Director/Assistant City 
Manager Cynthia Holtzapple. 
 
Also present: Eric Sauer of CYP Studios, Ruth Koon, Glen Devers, Carol Hogston, Cathy Oda, 
Jim Cruse, and Brad Boehringer. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to excuse Mayor Fess from 
the August 8, 2013 Piqua City Commission Work Session.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Wilson, 
and Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PITSENBARGER PARK SPLASH PAD 
 
Ruth Koon Chairperson of the Friends of the Park Committee provided background information on 
the Friends of the Parks activities and fundraising efforts to provide a Splash Pad at the Piqua 
Municipal Pool. Ms. Koon stated the cost of the splash pad is approximately $150,000, and to date 
they have only been able to raise about $21,000.  
 
Ms. Koon introduced Eric Sauer of CYP Studios in Dayton, Ohio.  Mr. Sauer provided several 
renderings of splash pad equipment available, and explained how a splash pad is operated. Mr. 
Sauer stated there are several types of systems that can be considered for the Piqua Municipal 
Pool, and explained the different types in detail. 
 
There were questions and discussion on the design of the splash pad, the type of equipment that 
would be required, the age of the children that would be utilizing the splash pad, the various types 
of pumps and recirculating systems for the water, and if it would be possible to have any of the 
installation be completed by in-house employees or local contractors.  It was also noted that it may 
be possible to get some of the supplies and installation work donated by local contractors and 
businesses. 
 
Several questions were raised concerning the amount of revenue the splash pad would generate, 
and if there were any other splash pads in a 50 mile radius that could provide revenue figures they 
have after installation of a splash pad.   It was noted that Troy and Tipp City both have splash 
pads in use at this time. Mr. Sauer was asked if his company has completed other splash pads in 
the area, and he noted several within the local area. 
 
Ms. Koon asked if there were any figures on the Piqua Municipal Pool for the 2013 season. 
Compared to last year the numbers are down, but this year the weather has not been very 
cooperative, stated Law Director Stacy Wall. The average attendance for a day is about 400 
stated City Manager Huff.   The Piqua Municipal Pool was built in 1986 and is in need of updates. 
 
Questions were raised concerning the use of grant money for the project, and it was noted that 
part of the funds raised included grant money. The splash pad is something that would benefit the 
whole community stated Ms. Koon, but we are going to need more help from the community to 
raise the funds to complete the project.    Ms. Koon asked if the money could be spent on other 
park amenities if the money raised was not enough for a splash pad   Ms. Wall stated the city will 
look into it as it depends on the designation that was stated the funds were being raised for by the 
Friends of the Parks group. 
 



 2

 After a lengthy discussion it was decided that the City would assume the responsibility for the   
       splash pad, and the Friends of the Parks will pursue other improvements to the park. 

 
 Mr. Sauer was asked to provide additional information to the City regarding the splash pad 
equipment and costs. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Piqua City 
Commission Work Session at 8:40 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, Martin, and Terry. Nay: 
None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE, MAYOR 
  
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday August 20, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
. 

     Consent Agenda 
     Approval of the minutes from the August 6, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
      
     Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to approve the Consent  
     Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Martin, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
     unanimously.   
 
    Old Business 
 
    ORD. NO. 10-13 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement assessments 
 
Amy Welker, Health & Sanitation Director provided a brief overview on the assessments.  The City 
of Piqua abates nuisance conditions on properties including mowing high grass, removing trash, 
trimming trees, and demolishing structures according to city code.  The cost of the abatement is 
then charged back to the property owner. If the property owner fails to pay the abatement fees then 
the costs are certified to the Miami County Auditor to be placed on the property taxes. These 
charges will go to the Auditor on September 9, 2013.  A revised list of the property assessments 
were included in the Commissioners packet with the Ordinance, as some of the fees have been 
paid since the last meeting, stated Ms. Welker. 
 
A question was raised regarding an assessment on a foreclosed property located on Cleveland 
Street, and why the property owner was still listed as the owner. Ms. Welker explained, and Law 
Director Stacy Wall further explained the process that it goes through in the courts. 
 

    Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 10-13. 
 
Ordinance No. 10-13 was given a second reading. 

 
    ORD. NO. 11-13 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay the cost of Demolition Assessments per terms of 
the Moving Ohio Forward Grant Agreement 
 
Bill Lutz, Development Program Manager, stated in 2012 the City of Piqua entered into an 
agreement (Moving Ohio Forward) with the Miami County Board of Commissioners for the 
demolition of residential structures in the City of Piqua.  The terms of this agreement were that the 
City would demolish up to ten houses and assess one-half of the demolition costs to the property 
owner.  To date, under the program, six properties have been demolished, two are under contract to 
be completed by August 30, and two more are currently being studied for asbestos contamination. 
 
There was discussion regarding the funds that are required to be held in a demolition defense fund 
when a property has been damaged by fire, and when and how the funds are disbursed. Ms. 
Welker stated not all properties are covered by insurance; many of the damaged properties do not 



 2

have any insurance on them. Ms. Wall provided a legal opinion on the reason for the demolition 
defense fund, and when the funds are used to clean up a property. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 11-13. 
 
Ordinance No. 11-13 was given a second reading. 
 
New Business 
 
ORD. NO. 12-13 (1st Reading) 
An emergency Ordinance to make appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2013 
 
Cynthia Holtzapple, Finance Director/Assistant City Manager stated about this time every year a 
supplemental appropriation is requested.  The 2013 annual budget is required to be presented to 
the City Commission in November of 2012, before all project timing and costs are known.  Projects 
expecting to be completed last year will sometimes carryover into the next year.  During the fiscal 
year, unexpected expenses do sometimes occur and this supplemental appropriation allows the city 
to more accurately reflect these changes in the financial statements.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No.12-13 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that the rule requiring Ordinance 
No. 12-13 be read fully and distinctly on three separate days be suspended. Roll call, Aye: Terry, 
Martin, Vogt, Fess, and Wilson. Nay, None: Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 12-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Fess, Wilson, and Terry. Nay, None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor fess then declared Ordinance No. 12-13 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 13-13 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule 111 of the Piqua 
Code relating to one-way streets and alleys pertaining to Wood Street 
 
Amy Havenar, City Engineer stated the City Manager received direction from the City Commission 
to evaluate the possibility of converting Wood Street into a one-way street eastbound between 
Covington Avenue and College Street.  Work sessions were held in January and February of 2013 
to discuss the various options for improving this section of roadway.  The City Commission 
indicated that their preference was to make Wood Street one-way eastbound between Covington 
Avenue and College Street.  
 
Based upon that recommendation, a Traffic Study was completed by The Kleingers Group which 
looked at making Wood Street one-way eastbound, and the effect that the one-way traffic would 
have on the surrounding streets. The findings of the report stated that converting Wood Street to 
one-way eastbound appears to be feasible, and that the city should also consider the possibility of 
allowing parking on both sides of the street between Gordon Street and College Street. 
 
The Consultant al recommended that the existing island bounded by Covington Avenue, Wood 
Street, and College Street be extended to the south to narrow the roadway width, and discourage 
illegal turns from Gordon Street. In the interim, pavement markings should be used to reduce the 
travel width until the curbed island can be constructed. 
 
There was discussion regarding the extension of the existing island further out on to Covington 
Avenue, coming off of Gordon Street going west on Covington Avenue,  and allowing parking on 
both sides of Wood Street after it becomes a one-way street.  Several other scenarios were 
suggested, and were discussed, 
 



 3

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Cindy Pearson, a Wood Street resident came forward stating she is very much in favor of the 
changes that are being recommended at this time on Wood Street. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that the rule requiring 
Ordinance No. 13-13 be read fully and distinctly on three separate days be suspended. Roll call, 
Aye: Vogt, Martin, Fess, Wilson, and Terry. Nay, None: Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 13-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess and Wilson. Nay: Vogt. Motion carried 4-0 vote. Mayor 
Fess then declared Ordinance No. 13-13 adopted.  
 

    RES. NO. R- 112-13  
    A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to North American Salt Co. for the purchase of road salt 
    for the Street Department 
 
    Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple stated the City of Piqua belongs to the Southwest Ohio  
    Purchasers for Government (SWOP4G) which bids out road salt purchases on behalf of  
    approximately 95 entities each year.  The city of Piqua has successfully participated in this joint 
    bidding for many years now, and found great value in the quantity discounts the vendors offer the 
    area communities. 
     
     We have budgeted $157,625.00 for 2013 and based on the purchase of 2000 tons the cost would  
     be about $105,600.00. Last year was a mild winter and we only spent $75,500 on salt, stated Ms.  
     Holtzapple. 
 

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-112-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-112-13 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-112-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-113-13 
A Resolution awarding a contract to L.J. DeWeese Co., for the Fountain Park Bridge Rehab project. 
 
Bob Graeser, Project Manager stated on August 8, 2013 the City received three bids for the 
Fountain Park Bridge Rehab Project.  The project will consist of raising the existing Fountain Park 
pedestrian bridge superstructure to make the bridge handicap accessible, and will include the 
construction of a new access ramp on the west side of the canal, and will also include the repainting 
of the entire bridge after the bridge construction is completed.  The City received a $65,000 grant 
from the Lundgard Foundation with an estimated completion date of November 15, 2013, stated Mr. 
Graeser. The bridge will be raised 32 inches to allow for the weed harvester to travel underneath it 
to clean the area. It was noted that the bridge will be painted red same as the other park bridges to 
be consistent.  
 
 Public Comment 
 
 No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-113-13. 

   
 Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-113-13 
be   adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Martin, Wilson, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-113-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-114-13 
A Resolution amending the agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation for the US 36 
Beautification Project. 



 4

Amy Havenar, City Engineer stated in July, 2013 the City Commission passed Resolution No.  R-
108-13 to enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the US 
Rt. 36 Beautification Project.  The agreement was for an amount not to exceed $352,500.  But since 
that time, the project bids came in and were higher than ODOT’s estimate.  Based upon the bid 
amounts the City will need to add an additional $166,000 into the escrow account. This will still 
cover the additional 10% contingency included in the first escrow agreement that allows for changes 
as construction evolves.  Bob Graeser, Project Manager provided an overview with slides showing 
the location of the changes, and providing a visual aid on the changes that are being proposed. 
Over a 138 trees will be planted between the railroad overpass and Looney Road, with crosswalks 
and curb enhancements, along with new street lights, stated Ms. Havenar.  
 
There was discussion of the changes, and how the trees will enhance the area.  Just removing the 
interstate fencing along the Rt 36 corridor has made quite an impact on the area so far, stated City 
Manager Huff.  Mayor Fess stated she received five emails from citizens encouraging the City 
Commission to adopt this resolution to improve the ascetics. 
 
Ms. Havenar explained the asphalt island east of I-75 will be replaced with a curbed island with 
plantings, and there are plans for redoing the island west of I-75 right now it is just a grass island, 
but will be putting curbs and drainage features in to help. 
  
These enhancements will help pedestrians crossing Rt 36 between the Miami Valley Center Mall 
area and the businesses located on the other side of Rt 36. 
  
Public Comment 

    
Cindy Pearson, Wood Street, came forward to encourage the Commission to adopt the 
Beautification Plan, stating this is another plus for the City of Piqua in becoming a user friendly city. 
These are the type of improvements that will help the City of Piqua attract new business and 
encourage citizens to use the bike path for walking and biking around the city. 
 
Dan French, Sunset Drive, came forward and also encouraged the Commission to adopt the 
Beautification Plan to improve the entrances to the City, and will help lead to future business and 
access to the other city amenities. 

 
     Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No R-114-13  
     be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Martin, Wilson, and Fess. Nay, None. Motion carried  
     unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-114-13 adopted. 
 
     PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Jim Hemmert, Boone Street came forward and provided information regarding the Miami Valley 
Regional Trail Survey and Count Project that was recently conducted on the Bike Path to gather 
information regarding the use of the bike trail for the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission.  
This is conducted every three years, and information is gathered at two locations on the bike trail.  
Lock Nine and French Park were the locations for the count which began at 6:30 A.M and ran 
through 9:00 P.M. on Sunday August 11, and again on Wednesday August 14, 2013.  Mr. 
Hemmert provided information on the number of walkers/joggers, bike riders, and dogs, who used 
the bike path between those hours. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the City appreciates all of Mr. Hemmert’s dedication to the City of Piqua 
projects. 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street came forward stating he is a Volunteer Park Ranger and has been 
seeing a lot of trash and debris out on the Bike Path as he is out patrolling.  Mr. Boehringer 
reminded citizens to please put their trash in the proper containers, and to pick up any trash they 
see when out on the Bike Path or in the City Parks. 

 
 



 5

     City Manager’s Report 
  

     City Manager Huff stated the major paving and stripping of the city streets is complete except for 
     Wood Street, which will be completed on Thursday August 22, 2013.. 
 
     City Manager Huff announced the new Emergency Preparedness Page is available on the City  
     Website under the Fire Department section.  This will provide information regarding any weather 
     related issues. 
 
     City Manager Huff also announced the new Pickleball Courts are almost finished, and are in the  
     final stages of completion, as they hope to open soon. 
 
     City Manager Huff stated Phase I of the Demolition of the Power Plant, which is all of the things on 
     the back side of the plant should begin soon. 
 

City Manager Huff announced that the Miami Valley Centre Mall Car Show was a huge success 
reporting over 400 cars, and over 12,000 people in attendance.  It was also noted that Economic 
Development Director / Assistant City Manager Bill Murphy was a great emcee this year !!! 
 
City Manager Huff stated in regards to the questions raised regarding open burning in the City he 
asked Fire Chief Rindler to come forward and provide information on open burning in the City of 
Piqua. 
 
Fire Chief Rindler came forward and provided a brief overview of the rules and regulations on 
recreational fires/open burning within the city limits.  Chief Rindler explained what a recreational fire 
is; further stating information is available on the City website and at the Fire Department if anyone 
is interested.  Mayor Fess stated she had a telephone call concerning an individual burning grass 
in the street.  Chief Rindler stated if someone sees a fire that they are concerned about they should 
call 911 for someone to come out and check it out. 

 
     Commissioners Comment 
 

 Commissioner Wilson stated Music Warehouse held recently at Fountain Park was a huge success 
and the highlight of the summer.  Commissioner Wilson thanked Tom Westfall and all of the 
children who participated for providing such a wonderful program for the citizen of Piqua. 
 
Commissioner Terry thanked Chief Rindler for providing the information on the recreational 
fires/open burning issue. 
 
Commissioner Terry also congratulated the Music Warehouse on another successful musical. 

  
Commissioner Martin reminded citizens that school is back in session and be careful when driving 
through the school zones and neighborhoods. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he wanted to thank all of his neighbors on Young Street and Linden 
Avenue for taking such pride in their properties and improving the neighborhood apperance. 
 

  Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular  
     Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:25 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, Wilson, and  
     Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

                 
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO.  R-115-13 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                         PUBLIC SERVICE OF KEVIN GROGEAN 
        AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Kevin Grogean has retired as Underground Maintenance Worker with 
the Underground Utilities Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 26 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
Kevin Grogean as Underground Maintenance Worker with the Underground Utilities 
Department, this Commission tenders its unanimous and respectful tribute by this 
Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO.  R-116-13 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                            PUBLIC SERVICE OF WIL BENSON 
       AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Wil Benson has retired as Police Officer with the Police Department; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 19 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of Wil Benson 
as Police Officer with the Police Department, this Commission tenders its unanimous and 
respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and permanent 
record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  10-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS  
TO PAY FOR THE COST OF NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
ASSESSMENT  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as reported to this 
Commission in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and 
that there be and is hereby levied and assessed upon the lot improved by the 
aforementioned nuisance abatement, the amount reported as aforesaid which 
assessment, together with the description of said lot is now on file in the offices of the 
Clerk of this Commission, the Director of Health, and the Director of Finance and is not 
in excess of the special benefits to said property, and is not in excess of a statutory 
limitation. 
 

SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 
at the option of the owner, in two equal semiannual installments.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Health.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remaining unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
SEC. 3: This Ordinance is required to be effective immediately in order to 

submit assessment to the County Auditor’s office by September 9, 2013; wherefore; 
this ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it’s passage. 
 
1st Reading 8-6-2013 
2nd Reading 8-20-2013 
       ____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
August 6, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
An Ordinance to Levy Special Assessments to Pay for the Cost of Nuisance 
Abatement Assessment 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Amy Welker, Director of Health & Sanitation 
Department:  Health 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
The city abates nuisance conditions on properties including mowing high grass, 
removing trash, trimming trees, and demolishing structures according to city 
code.  The cost of the abatement is charged back to the property owner.  If the 
property owner fails to pay the abatement cost then the costs are certified to the 
county auditor to be placed on the property taxes.  The auditor accepts these 
assessments once per year.  This year the assessments are due to the auditor by 
September 9, 2013. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:   
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds: Reimbursement of $35,597.44 
Narrative:  This ordinance will allow for the collection of $35,597.44 

which includes the cost to the city to hire contractors to 
complete the abatements and also administrative costs. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Pass the ordinance to assess the abatement costs. 
2. Do not pass the ordinance. 
3. Provide further direction to staff. 
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

First reading at the 8-6-13 meeting.   
Second reading at the 8-20-13 meeting. 
Third reading at the 9-3-13 meeting..  
Assessments sent to county auditor 9-9-13 (if passed)  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Pass the ordinance to assess the abatement costs. 

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit A 

 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
SE

PT
EM

BE
R 

3,
 2

01
3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ja

ck
so

n 
Re

nt
al

 P
ro

p
08

1-
13

61
4

Bo
al

 A
ve

nu
e

N
44

-0
29

51
0

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
 

Ki
nd

el
l M

ar
y

93
7

61
0

BO
O

N
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

11
11

0
Gr

as
s

87
.5

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
3.

75
 

$ 
   

   
   

43
.7

5 
Su

e 
W

he
at

on
03

8-
13

72
6

BO
O

N
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

18
12

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Su
e 

W
he

at
on

08
8-

13
72

6
BO

O
N

E 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
18

12
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Su
e 

W
he

at
on

12
1-

13
72

6
BO

O
N

E 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
18

12
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
Jo

yc
e 

Jo
ne

s
10

7-
13

21
0

Br
en

tw
oo

d 
Av

en
ue

N
44

-0
61

02
0

Gr
as

s
13

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  6
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

67
.5

0 
M

ic
ha

el
 B

ar
ho

rs
t 

02
3-

13
52

3
BR

IC
E 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
29

60
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
M

ic
ha

el
 B

ar
ho

rs
t 

07
9-

13
52

3
BR

IC
E 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
29

60
0

Gr
as

s
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

30
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 3

00
.0

0 
Sw

ar
ts

 T
ar

a
65

7
16

6
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
48

97
0

Gr
as

s
13

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  6
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

67
.5

0 
Ja

m
es

 B
ot

ts
05

1-
13

31
9

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

08
59

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

He
m

m
 K

en
ne

th
 J

93
5

51
3

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

08
73

0
Gr

as
s

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

40
.0

0 
Ho

pe
 C

ha
pe

l
04

4-
13

62
4

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
66

3
Gr

as
s

62
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
31

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 3
10

.0
0 

Ho
pe

 C
ha

pe
l

00
8-

13
62

4
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

66
3

Gr
as

s
56

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

28
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

80
.0

0 
Ho

pe
 C

ha
pe

l
74

0
62

4
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-2
50

45
0

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
Ho

pe
 C

ha
pe

l
92

2
62

4
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-2
50

45
0

Gr
as

s
55

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 2

76
.2

5 
W

in
sle

r R
ob

er
t J

82
5

81
9

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
44

0
Gr

as
s

15
7.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

8.
75

 
$ 

   
   

   
78

.7
5 

Ba
sy

e 
Ro

be
rt

 L
76

7
82

3
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

42
0

Gr
as

s
15

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
   

76
.2

5 
Ro

be
rt

 B
as

ye
04

5-
13

82
3

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
42

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ro
be

rt
 L

 B
as

ye
 

00
9-

13
82

3
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

42
0

Gr
as

s
14

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

70
.0

0 
Ro

be
rt

 L
 B

as
ye

 
09

0-
13

82
3

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
42

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Je
ffr

ey
 S

 Y
ou

ng
 

00
6-

13
10

11
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

93
0

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Be

ai
r D

el
or

es
10

41
12

30
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
33

72
0

Tr
as

h
11

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

55
.0

0 
De

lo
re

s B
ea

ir
03

5-
13

12
30

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

33
72

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ca

th
er

in
e 

M
ac

Ke
lla

r
08

9-
13

15
05

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

97
90

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ke
nn

et
h 

F 
&

 C
at

hr
yn

 A
 S

ta
m

ba
u g

00
7-

13
16

06
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
49

02
0

Gr
as

s
85

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
42

.5
0 

Ke
nn

et
h 

St
am

ba
ug

h
07

0-
13

16
06

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

49
02

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Ba
ym

an
 A

nt
ho

ny
 M

10
23

14
08

Br
oo

k 
St

N
44

-0
39

00
0

Tr
as

h
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
32

.5
0 

Co
rd

le
 Ja

m
es

 E
69

8
90

6
Ca

m
p 

St
N

44
-0

52
09

0
Gr

as
s

17
4.

76
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

7.
38

 
$ 

   
   

   
87

.3
8 

Ke
ok

a 
Ba

rn
es

 A
nt

ho
ny

 
01

1-
13

81
5

CL
AR

K 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

40
63

0
Gr

as
s

13
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  6

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
67

.5
0 

Ke
ok

a 
Ba

rn
es

 A
nt

ho
ny

 
09

6-
13

81
5

CL
AR

K 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

40
63

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
De

br
a 

Ri
tc

hi
e

11
0-

13
10

13
CL

AR
K 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
36

15
0

Gr
as

s
17

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  8
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

87
.5

0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
SE

PT
EM

BE
R 

3,
 2

01
3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ch

ar
le

s D
od

d
80

8
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

65
7.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
32

8.
75

 
$ 

   
   

 3
28

.7
5 

Ch
ar

le
s D

od
d

02
0-

13
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 

Ch
ar

le
s D

od
d

05
8-

13
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

58
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
29

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
90

.0
0 

Ch
ar

le
s D

od
d

11
5-

13
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

O
H 

SE
VE

N
 L

LC
05

7-
13

41
0

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
43

22
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
O

H 
Se

ve
n 

LL
C

01
9-

13
41

0
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
22

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
O

H 
Se

ve
n 

LL
C

10
8-

13
41

0
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
22

0
Gr

as
s

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
90

.0
0 

Ch
ar

lo
tt

e 
Pe

tt
y

05
0-

13
62

4
CO

TT
AG

E 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

28
97

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ca
rn

es
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 IV

 L
LC

07
8-

13
70

2
CO

TT
AG

E 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

29
07

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ca

rn
es

 M
ar

k
90

4
10

11
Co

vi
ng

to
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
29

98
0

Gr
as

s
14

1.
26

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
0.

63
 

$ 
   

   
   

70
.6

3 
M

ar
y 

Di
pa

do
va

04
2-

13
12

30
CO

VI
N

GT
O

N
 A

VE
N

44
-0

78
64

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Je
nn

ife
r R

ue
03

6-
13

14
17

CO
VI

N
GT

O
N

 A
VE

N
44

-0
73

42
6

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Fe

de
ra

l H
om

e 
Lo

an
 M

or
tg

ag
e

77
0

21
1

E 
Gr

ee
ne

 S
t

N
44

-0
00

29
0

Gr
as

s
14

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

70
.0

0 
Cl

em
en

t J
oy

ce
 A

75
9

41
5

E 
Gr

ee
ne

 S
t

N
44

-0
09

71
0

Gr
as

s
16

8.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  8
4.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

84
.0

0 
Ro

se
 T

ra
ce

y
09

4-
13

30
9

E.
 G

re
en

e 
St

.
N

44
-0

16
73

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
Ci

nd
y 

Be
nn

et
t L

oc
ke

r
10

3-
13

43
4

E.
 G

re
en

e 
St

.
N

44
-0

51
15

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Bu

ck
ey

e 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

11
8-

13
20

3-
20

5
E.

 N
or

th
 S

t.
N

44
-0

02
79

0
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 
Sa

nd
ra

 G
er

lin
g 

Po
lse

lli
 T

ru
st

ee
03

1-
13

EC
HO

 L
AK

E 
DR

IV
E

N
44

-0
55

88
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

W
ill

ia
m

s F
re

d
72

2
14

11
Ed

ge
 S

t
N

44
-0

35
48

0
Gr

as
s

58
.1

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  2
9.

05
 

$ 
   

   
   

29
.0

5 
Fr

ed
 C

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
00

1-
13

14
11

ED
GE

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

48
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
At

ki
ns

 M
ar

y 
C

64
2

35
8

El
le

rm
an

N
44

-0
31

32
0

Gr
as

s
52

3.
10

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
1.

55
 

$ 
   

   
 2

61
.5

5 
M

ar
y 

At
ki

ns
05

3-
13

35
8

EL
LE

RM
AN

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

32
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

M
cL

ai
n 

Da
vi

d
89

2
15

18
Fa

irf
ax

 A
ve

N
44

-0
72

65
7

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Co

ur
tla

nd
 G

 E
ge

rt
on

 
04

7-
13

91
0

FA
LM

O
U

TH
 A

VE
N

U
E

N
44

-0
70

69
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Am
y 

J L
au

gh
m

an
 

03
7-

13
91

1
FA

LM
O

U
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

70
82

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 G
oo

d
01

8-
13

20
4

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
76

0
Gr

as
s

10
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
52

.5
0 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 G
oo

d
07

2-
13

20
4

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
76

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 G
oo

d
11

7-
13

20
4

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
76

0
Gr

as
s

27
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
13

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 1
35

.0
0 

W
ac

kl
er

 Ja
so

n 
D

74
9

20
5

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
90

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ja
rr

od
 H

ue
lsk

am
p

02
6-

13
32

3
GA

RN
SE

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
28

21
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

PA
ID

PN
C 

Ba
nk

08
5-

13
41

1
GL

EN
W

O
O

D 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

61
54

0
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
SE

PT
EM

BE
R 

3,
 2

01
3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ra

ym
on

d 
Br

ew
er

02
1-

13
41

5
GL

EN
W

O
O

D 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

61
56

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ra

ym
on

d 
Br

ew
er

08
0-

13
41

5
GL

EN
W

O
O

D 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

61
56

0
Gr

as
s

19
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
97

.5
0 

Do
ug

la
s L

ie
tt

e
08

2-
13

42
3

GL
EN

W
O

O
D 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
61

60
0

Gr
as

s
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
32

.5
0 

An
ge

la
 M

ay
er

07
7-

13
30

9
Go

rd
on

 S
t

N
44

-0
14

09
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

M
ay

er
 A

ng
el

a
79

0
30

9
Go

rd
on

 S
t

N
44

-0
14

09
0

Gr
as

s
15

4.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
7.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

77
.0

0 
Ga

ry
 D

itm
er

72
3

50
7

GR
AY

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

46
0

Gr
as

s
52

3.
10

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
1.

55
 

$ 
   

   
 2

61
.5

5 
Ga

ry
 D

itm
er

91
8

50
7

GR
AY

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

46
0

Gr
as

s
54

3.
76

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
1.

88
 

$ 
   

   
 2

71
.8

8 
Ga

ry
 D

itm
er

01
4-

13
50

7
GR

AY
 S

TR
EE

T
N

44
-0

35
46

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ga
ry

 D
itm

er
11

4-
13

50
7

GR
AY

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

46
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
M

ar
y 

 E
lk

in
06

0-
13

51
1

HA
RN

EY
 D

RI
VE

N
44

-0
63

63
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

F 
O

 E
 P

iq
ua

 A
er

ie
 #

61
4 

In
c

07
3-

13
30

1
KI

EN
LE

 D
RI

VE
N

44
-0

74
75

5
Gr

as
s

15
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
77

.5
0 

M
ar

tin
 F

or
es

t M
72

7
70

6
Le

on
ar

d 
St

N
44

-0
32

03
0

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
M

ar
tin

 F
or

es
t M

87
9

70
6

Le
on

ar
d 

St
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 

M
ar

tin
 F

or
es

t M
09

8-
13

70
6

Le
on

ar
d 

St
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Fo
re

st
 M

ar
tin

04
8-

13
70

6
LE

O
N

AR
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

53
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
65

.0
0 

Fo
re

st
 M

ar
tin

00
2-

13
70

6
LE

O
N

AR
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

53
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
65

.0
0 

Do
nn

a 
M

ish
ni

ck
05

2-
13

71
2

LE
O

N
AR

D 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
32

00
0

Gr
as

s
82

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

1.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
41

.0
0 

Gr
ill

io
t D

an
ie

l J
10

25
51

0
Li

nc
ol

n 
St

N
44

-0
22

61
0

Tr
as

h
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
30

.0
0 

Bu
rn

s R
ob

er
t

77
5

91
9

M
ad

iso
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
25

69
0

Gr
as

s
55

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 2

76
.2

5 
M

on
be

ck
 E

dw
ar

d 
L

69
4

13
08

M
ad

iso
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
27

13
0

Tr
as

h
10

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

52
.5

0 
Ro

be
rt

 C
 B

ur
ns

01
5-

13
91

9
M

AD
IS

O
N

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

25
69

0
Gr

as
s

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
90

.0
0 

Ra
lp

h 
Bl

ue
03

0-
13

22
8

M
AN

N
IN

G 
ST

RE
E T

N
44

 0
35

74
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

Ra
lp

h 
E 

Bl
ue

07
5-

13
22

8
M

AN
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

E T
N

44
-0

35
74

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Ra
lp

h 
E 

Bl
ue

10
1-

13
22

8
M

AN
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

E T
N

44
-0

35
74

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Te
rr

ac
e 

Cr
ee

k 
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

 L
LC

06
9-

13
90

M
AR

YV
IL

LE
 L

AN
E 

 
N

44
-0

93
76

0
Gr

as
s

PA
ID

M
ar

y 
Lo

u 
Ki

nd
el

l
04

3-
13

42
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
62

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

M
ar

y 
Lo

u 
Ki

nd
el

l
09

9-
13

42
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
62

0
Gr

as
s

55
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
75

.0
0 

Ki
nd

el
l M

ar
y

92
5

42
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
62

0
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 

Hu
be

r K
en

ne
th

 E
65

4
50

0
M

CK
IN

LE
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
35

32
0

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
Ke

nn
et

h 
E 

Hu
be

r
06

6-
13

50
0

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

35
32

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ke
nn

et
h 

Hu
be

r, 
Jr

.
00

5-
13

50
0

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

35
32

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
SE

PT
EM

BE
R 

3,
 2

01
3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ke

nn
et

h 
Hu

be
r, 

Jr
.

10
5-

13
50

0
M

CK
IN

LE
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
35

32
0

Gr
as

s
55

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

75
.0

0 
Ro

ge
r S

ul
liv

an
03

3-
13

52
1

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
55

0
Gr

as
s

13
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  6

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
67

.5
0 

Ja
ne

 C
ot

re
ll

08
4-

13
53

4
M

CK
IN

LE
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
35

53
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Cr
ow

el
l D

el
m

ar
 L

77
1

70
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

38
45

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

Hi
ck

s J
ac

ko
lin

e
64

5
62

5
M

IA
M

I S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

09
0

Gr
as

s
15

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
   

76
.2

5 
Le

e 
Co

un
ty

 In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ro
up

 L
L C

02
7-

13
62

5
M

IA
M

I S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

09
0

Gr
as

s
21

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

10
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 1

05
.0

0 
Le

e 
Co

un
ty

 In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ro
up

 L
L C

09
1-

13
62

5
M

IA
M

I S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

09
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
Br

um
ba

ug
h 

Ba
rb

ar
a 

L
90

9
N

 C
o 

Rd
 2

5A
N

44
-0

78
44

6
Gr

as
s

26
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
13

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 1
30

.0
0 

He
nr

ic
e 

Ed
el

yn
e

67
9

65
0

N
 D

ow
ni

ng
 S

t
N

44
-0

04
18

0
Gr

as
s

12
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  6

1.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
61

.2
5 

Fi
ft

h 
Th

ird
 M

or
tg

ag
e

02
8-

13
20

0
Ra

ce
 S

tr
ee

t
N

44
-0

17
00

0
Gr

as
s

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  2
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

27
.5

0 
Fi

ft
h 

Th
ird

 M
or

tg
ag

e
10

2-
13

20
0

Ra
ce

 S
tr

ee
t

N
44

-0
17

00
0

Gr
as

s
55

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  2

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
27

.5
0 

O
ld

s J
oh

n 
S

82
8

12
08

Re
ck

er
 R

d
N

44
-0

72
86

8
Gr

as
s

17
6.

25
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

8.
13

 
$ 

   
   

   
88

.1
3 

M
ic

ha
el

 B
og

gs
02

5-
13

20
8

RE
N

CH
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

72
97

8
Gr

as
s

22
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
11

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 1
10

.0
0 

M
ic

ha
el

 B
og

gs
09

7-
13

20
8

RE
N

CH
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

72
97

8
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ro
na

ld
 A

nt
ho

ny
09

3-
13

11
7

Ri
ve

rs
id

e 
Dr

N
44

-0
03

53
0

Gr
as

s
37

4.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

18
7.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 1

87
.0

0 
Cu

rt
ne

r A
la

n 
K

75
4

51
0

Ri
ve

rs
id

e 
Dr

N
44

-0
18

48
0

Gr
as

s
87

.5
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

3.
75

 
$ 

   
   

   
43

.7
5 

Do
ug

la
s H

ar
sh

ba
rg

er
05

9-
13

52
4

RI
VE

RS
ID

E 
DR

IV
E

N
44

-0
39

52
0

Gr
as

s
11

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

57
.5

0 
Do

ug
la

s H
ar

sh
ba

rg
er

11
1-

13
52

4
RI

VE
RS

ID
E 

DR
IV

E
N

44
-0

39
52

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Fl

au
gh

er
 S

ha
ro

n 
E

79
6

52
9

S 
Do

w
ni

ng
 S

t
N

44
-0

07
49

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

Lo
is 

&
 G

eo
rg

e 
Em

er
so

n
05

6-
13

70
1

S 
DO

W
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

13
06

0
Gr

as
s

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
90

.0
0 

Lo
is 

&
 G

eo
rg

e 
Em

er
so

n
01

2-
13

70
1

S 
DO

W
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

13
06

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 

Lo
is 

&
 G

eo
rg

e 
Em

er
so

n
10

4-
13

70
1

S 
DO

W
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

13
06

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Ha
tt

ie
 M

 H
el

to
n

01
0-

13
42

8
S 

M
AI

N
N

44
-0

04
74

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

He
lto

n 
Ha

tt
ie

 M
68

0
42

8
S 

M
ai

n 
St

N
44

-0
04

74
0

Gr
as

s
15

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
   

76
.2

5 
He

lto
n 

Ha
tt

ie
 M

85
0

42
8

S 
M

ai
n 

St
N

44
-0

04
74

0
Gr

as
s

21
0.

25
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
10

5.
13

 
$ 

   
   

 1
05

.1
3 

Sm
ith

 A
sh

to
n

74
8

53
5

S 
M

ai
n 

St
N

44
-0

16
45

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

As
ht

on
 P

 S
m

ith
07

1-
13

53
5

S 
M

AI
N

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
16

45
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
Ca

rn
es

 M
ar

k
78

2
30

3
S 

Ro
os

ev
el

t A
ve

N
44

-0
13

20
0

Gr
as

s
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
35

.0
0 

Pe
nr

od
 F

ou
r S

ea
so

ns
 L

LC
06

7-
13

12
14

S 
Ro

os
ev

el
t A

ve
N

44
-0

71
18

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
Fe

de
ra

l N
at

io
na

l M
or

tg
ag

e
00

3-
13

10
00

S 
RO

O
SE

VE
LT

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

41
42

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Li
tt

le
 T

om
m

y 
G

81
0

12
10

S 
Ro

os
ev

el
t S

t
N

44
-0

71
16

0
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
SE

PT
EM

BE
R 

3,
 2

01
3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
W

oo
ds

 E
dg

e 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
04

9-
13

63
7

S 
W

AY
N

E 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
12

72
0

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Fr

an
k 

Pu
lfe

r
08

6-
13

20
7

S.
 W

ay
ne

 S
tr

ee
t

N
44

-0
03

95
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Ro
sa

lia
 K

ru
se

10
9-

13
31

8
S.

 W
ay

ne
 S

tr
ee

t
N

44
-0

04
37

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
An

ge
la

 K
 Y

ou
ng

01
3-

13
34

2
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
20

00
0

Gr
as

s
16

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  8
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

80
.0

0 
An

ge
la

 Y
ou

ng
05

4-
13

34
2

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

20
00

0
Gr

as
s

56
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
28

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
80

.0
0 

An
ge

la
 Y

ou
ng

09
2-

13
34

2
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
20

00
0

Gr
as

s
56

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

28
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

80
.0

0 
Ca

rn
es

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 IV
 L

LC
06

5-
13

81
3

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

28
74

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Fr

ed
er

ic
k 

&
 L

in
da

 G
al

br
ea

th
 

01
7-

13
81

7
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
28

75
0

Gr
as

s
10

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

52
.5

0 
Fr

ed
ric

k 
R 

Ga
lb

re
at

h
06

4-
13

81
7

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

28
75

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Fr

ed
er

ic
k 

L 
Ha

ll
00

4-
13

13
12

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

33
50

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Fr
ed

er
ic

k 
L 

Ha
ll

06
3-

13
13

12
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
33

50
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
Fr

ed
er

ic
k 

L 
Ha

ll
11

3-
13

13
12

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

33
50

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Yo
un

g 
An

ge
la

 K
66

9
34

2
So

ut
h 

St
N

44
-0

20
00

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

Ha
ll 

Fr
ed

85
3

13
12

So
ut

h 
St

N
44

-0
33

50
0

Gr
as

s
63

6.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

31
8.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 3

18
.2

5 
Da

le
 R

 T
id

er
in

gt
on

03
4-

13
81

5
VI

N
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

27
23

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Pa

yn
e 

N
ic

ol
e 

R
72

4
31

7
Vi

rg
in

ia
 S

t
N

44
-0

19
15

7
Gr

as
s

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

35
.0

0 
Pa

yn
e 

N
ic

ol
e 

R
09

5-
13

31
7

Vi
rg

in
ia

 S
t

N
44

-0
19

15
7

Gr
as

s
13

7.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  6
8.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

68
.5

0 
N

ic
ol

e 
Pa

yn
e

02
4-

13
31

7
VI

RG
IN

IA
 S

TR
EE

T
N

44
-0

19
15

7
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 
Br

ad
le

y 
U

lb
ric

h
11

9-
13

52
1-

52
3

W
. H

IG
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

19
45

0
Gr

as
s

PA
ID

Ti
pp

 C
ity

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s L

LC
03

9-
13

17
15

W
 H

IG
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-1

00
30

0
Gr

as
s

33
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
16

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 1
67

.5
0 

Go
be

r N
at

ha
n 

R
83

9
52

9
W

 W
at

er
 S

t
N

44
-0

08
73

5
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 

Ba
nk

 o
f A

m
er

ic
a 

N
A

11
6-

13
71

5
W

 W
at

er
 S

t.
N

44
-0

20
37

0
Gr

as
s

26
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
13

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 1
32

.5
0 

Fr
ee

 A
le

x 
L

80
5

11
26

W
 W

at
er

 S
t

N
44

-0
21

17
0

Gr
as

s
61

.2
6

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

0.
63

 
$ 

   
   

   
30

.6
3 

Ba
nk

 o
f A

m
er

ic
a 

N
A

04
6-

13
71

5
W

 W
AT

ER
 S

TR
EE

T
N

44
-0

20
37

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
Ge

rt
ru

de
 R

 F
ly

nn
02

9-
13

51
0

W
AL

KE
R 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

22
46

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ge

rt
ru

de
 R

 F
ly

nn
11

2-
13

51
0

W
AL

KE
R 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

22
46

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Li

et
te

 R
ea

lty
49

8
15

21
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Av

e
N

44
-0

27
81

0
Tr

as
h

60
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

30
.0

0 
Sh

irl
ey

 S
to

ne
ro

ck
10

0-
13

71
5

W
ill

ar
d 

St
N

44
-0

31
91

0
Gr

as
s

15
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
77

.5
0 

Da
w

n 
M

ah
rt

06
8-

13
17

12
W

IL
LI

AM
S 

PL
AC

E
N

44
-0

71
97

5
Gr

as
s

27
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
13

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 1
37

.5
0 

Da
w

n 
M

ah
rt

08
3-

13
17

12
W

IL
LI

AM
S 

PL
AC

E
N

44
-0

71
97

5
Gr

as
s

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
4.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

34
.0

0 
Sh

ar
on

 F
er

re
e

06
1-

13
80

9
W

IL
SO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E

N
44

-0
38

68
0

Gr
as

s
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
32

.5
0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
SE

PT
EM

BE
R 

3,
 2

01
3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
Ra

m
on

a 
J

65
6

41
9

Y 
St

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
52

8.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
4.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

64
.0

0 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
Ra

m
on

a 
J

86
6

41
9

Y 
St

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
55

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 2

76
.2

5 
Ed

w
ar

d 
M

cC
ro

ss
in

 &
 R

am
on

a 
M

o
02

2-
13

41
9

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
Ed

w
ar

d 
M

cC
ro

ss
in

 &
 R

am
on

a 
M

o
07

6-
13

41
9

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
53

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

65
.0

0 
Ed

w
ar

d 
M

cC
ro

ss
in

 &
 R

am
on

a 
M

o
12

0-
13

41
9

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

30
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 3

00
.0

0 
Ca

rn
es

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 IV
 L

LC
03

2-
13

33
8

Yo
un

g
N

44
-0

13
38

0
Tr

as
h

18
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
92

.5
0 

Ca
rn

es
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 IV

 L
LC

08
7-

13
33

8
Yo

un
g

N
44

-0
13

38
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

Ja
so

n 
W

ac
kl

er
05

5-
13

43
1

Yo
un

g
N

44
-0

45
68

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Be
rt

ie
 C

of
fe

e
01

6-
13

43
4

Yo
un

g
N

44
-0

22
42

0
Gr

as
s

15
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
77

.5
0 

W
ac

kl
er

 Ja
so

n 
D

66
3

42
9

Yo
un

g 
St

N
44

-0
45

68
0

Gr
as

s
52

3.
10

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
1.

55
 

$ 
   

   
 2

61
.5

5 
W

ac
kl

er
 Ja

so
n 

D
10

6-
13

43
1

Yo
un

g 
St

N
44

-0
45

68
0

Gr
as

s
85

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
42

.5
0 

Be
rt

ie
 C

of
fe

e
07

4-
13

43
4

YO
U

N
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

22
42

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 

TO
TA

L
38

,5
64

.9
4

$ 
19

,2
82

.4
7

$
19

,2
82

.4
7

$ 



ORDINANCE NO.  11-13  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO PAY THE COST OF DEMOLITION ASSESSMENTS 
PER TERMS OF MOVING OHIO FORWARD GRANT 
AGREEMENT 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 

the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as defined under the 
Moving Ohio Forward Program, as reported to this Commission in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and that there be and is hereby levied and 
assessed upon the lot improved by the aforementioned nuisance abatement, the 
amount reported as aforesaid which assessment, together with the description of said 
lot is now on file in the office of the Clerk of this Commission and in the office of the 
Director of Finance and is not in excess of the special benefits to said property, and is 
not in excess of a statutory limitation. 

 
  
SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 

at the option of the owner, in one annual installment.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Finance.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remained unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
1st Reading 8-6-2013 
2nd Reading 8-20-2013 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 5
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

August 6, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An Ordinance to Levy Special Assessment to Pay the Cost of Demolition 
Assessments Per Terms of the Moving Ohio Forward Grant Agreement 
(Ordinance #11-13) 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: William Lutz  Development Program Manager 
Department: Community Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

In 2012 The City of Piqua entered into a grant agreement (Moving Ohio 
Forward) with the Miami County Board of Commissioners for the demolition of 
residential structures.  The terms of this grant were that the City would demolish 
up to ten houses and assess ½ of the demolition costs to the property owner.   
 
To date, under the program, six properties have been demolished, two are under 
contract to be completed by August 30 and two more are currently being studies 
for asbestos contamination.    
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  No budget 
Expenditure $:  No expenditure 
Source of Funds: Moving Ohio Forward Grant 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt the ordinance which will put one half of the demolition costs on the 
tax duplicate in accordance with the agreement with the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

2. Deny the ordinance and provide further guidance. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Must be completed by December 31, 2013 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff would recommend that the ordinance be adopted by the City Commission. 

ATTACHMENTS   

 



Moving Ohio Forward Assessemnts Appendix A Ordinance 11-13

Name Location Lot No Parcel No Type Amount Due 
Dec-13

Nathan Gober 529 W. Water 435 N44-008735 Demolition 11,487.72    11,487.72      
Fred Williams 1411 Edge St 2804-50 N44-035480 Demolition 4,258.22      4,258.22        
Gary Ditmer 507 Gray St 2802-50 N44-035460 Demolition 2,902.72      2,902.72        
Patricia Young 622 First St 4747 S End N44-054230 Demolition 3,712.72      3,712.72        
Ann Wead 114 Cassell St 1459-50 N44-022330 Demolition 4,867.22      4,867.22        
Delmar Crowell 707 McKinley 3103-45 N44-038450 Demolition 5,289.72      5,289.72        

Total 32,518.32    32,518.32      



RESOLUTION NO. R-117-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER 
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH ARCADIS U.S., INC., FOR PROFESSIONAL  ENGINEERING 

SERVICES AS RELATED TO THE MIAMI RIVER INTERCEPTOR  SIPHON LINE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 
 WHEREAS, In April 2013, the City of Piqua received the Sanitary Sewer System Master Plan 
Final Report prepared by CDM Smith; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Master Plan details a recommended Capital Improvement Plan 
that includes augmentation of Miami River Siphon Line; and 
 

WHEREAS, On January 30, 2013 the City of Piqua issued a Request For Qualifications for 
professional engineering services related to the design of this improvement; and 
 

WHEREAS, On February 27, 2013, responses to the City’s request were received; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon careful review of the responses, it has been determined that ARCADIS U.S., 
Inc., has the desired experience and qualifications to perform the professional engineering services 
related to the design of this improvement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with ARCADIS U.S., Inc., to 
perform Professional Engineering Services for the design of the Miami River Siphon Improvements;  

 
SEC. 2: The cost involved is not to exceed $166,000 and will be funded by Wastewater Plant 

Budget in 2013 and 2014, $90,000 and $76,000 respectively. 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby authorized to draw 
her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment according to 
contract terms, not exceeding a total of $166,000; 
 
 SEC. 4: In accordance with section 34.19 of the Piqua Municipal Code, this professional service 
does not need to be bid. 
 
 SEC. 5: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period 
allowed by law. 
 
         __________________________ 
         LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE September 3, 2013 
 

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 

A resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with 
ARCADIS U.S., Inc. for professional engineering services as related to the 
Miami River Interceptor Siphon Line Improvements.   

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Todd Brandenburg, Superintendent 

Department:  Underground Utilities 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

As a critical element of the Sanitary Sewer System Master Plan (April 2013) 
performed by CDM Smith, it has been recommended and is agreed upon by the 
Underground Utilities Department, that the Great Miami River Siphon Line be 
augmented by an additional 16” siphon line as stated in Section 8.1 Capital 
Improvement Plan – Phase 1. 

This necessary improvement is vital to the City’s efforts in eliminating the 
current Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) located on the west side of the Great 
Miami River. Through flow monitoring and system modeling, it has been 
determined that the City’s existing siphon capacity is creating a “hydraulic 
bottleneck” during wet weather events. This improvement will allow for greater 
flow rates to be conveyed to the Wastewater Treatment Plant for equalization 
and treatment, thus reducing the risk of surcharging into the collection system 
and subsequently creating an SSO event.    

On January 30, 2013, the City of Piqua Underground Utilities Department 
issued a Request For Qualifications (RFQ) to retain professional engineering 
services for the City’s Miami River Interceptor Siphon Line Improvements and 
received the RFQs on February 27, 2013. The Underground Utilities 
Department received 8 responses from various consulting firms with offices in 
Southwest Ohio.    

Careful review of all 8 responses by City Staff concluded in a decision to pursue 
negotiations with ARCADIS U.S., Inc., largely based upon the firms’ 
experience with similar successful projects along with their environmental 
compliance and permitting qualifications. City Staff and representatives from 
ARCADIS U.S., Inc., have met on several occasions since and developed a 
proper scope, contract and fee schedule based upon the City’s desired outcomes 
for this project. This contract has been reviewed and approved by the Law 
Director. 



        
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $90,000 in 2013 – Remaining $76,000 in 2014 

Expenditure $:  $166,000 

Source of Funds: Local (Wastewater Dept. 404 Fund)  
Narrative  The design of this project is scheduled to take place 

during the remainder of 2013 with expenditures not to 
exceed $90,000 while the remaining $76,000 will be 
expended in 2014 and will take the project through the 
bidding process as stated in Exhibit “A”. This project 
budget does include a 10% contingency. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with ARCADIS U.S., 
Inc., to provide professional engineering services.   

2. Deny the resolution and continue to operate the Miami River Siphon under 
existing conditions that risk SSO occurrences and raise concerns with the 
Ohio EPA.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE The design portion of this project will commence immediately with bidding and 

construction planned to occur during the second quarter of 2014.           
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approval of the Resolution to enter into an agreement with ARCADIS U.S., 
Inc., to provide professional engineering services as related to the Miami River 
Siphon Improvements. 

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit “A” - ARCADIS U.S., Inc., Design Services Agreement   

 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 1 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

This is an Agreement effective as of ___________, 2013 [“Effective Date”] between The City of Piqua, Ohio [“Client”], a 

municipal corporation chartered under the laws of the State of Ohio, having its principal place of business at 201 West Water 

Street, Piqua, Ohio 45356, and ARCADIS U.S., Inc., [“ARCADIS’] a corporation chartered under the laws of the State of 

Delaware, having its principal place of business at 630 Plaza Drive, Highlands Ranch, Colorado 80129 and an office at 4665 

Cornell Road, Suite 350, Cincinnati, Ohio 45241. 

The Client intends to design and construct the Great Miami River Interceptor Siphon Improvements [“Project”]. 

Client engages ARCADIS to provide professional engineering services related to the design and construction administration in 
support of its Project [Services]. 

The location of the Project is at the existing Great Miami River Siphon located immediately north of the City’s Wastewater 
Treatment Plant – 121 Bridge Street, Piqua [Site], Ohio [State]. 

ARCADIS’s Services for the Project are described generally as follows: 

Design phase services for the Great Miami River Interceptor Siphon Improvements.  See attached Schedule A for Basic 
Engineering Services and Related Matters. 

In consideration of the mutual promises herein, Client and ARCADIS agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
are the following: 

1 BASIC SERVICES

1.1 Scope.  ARCADIS shall provide the Basic Services described in Schedule A.  ARCADIS's obligations under this Agreement are 
solely for the benefit of Client and no other party is intended to benefit or have rights hereunder. 

1.2 Standard of Care.  ARCADIS shall perform the professional engineering Services under this Agreement at the level customary for 
competent and prudent engineers performing such services at the time and place where the services are provided [Standard of Care].
These Services will be provided by licensed engineers and other professionals and individuals skilled in other technical disciplines, as 
appropriate.

1.3 Instruments of Service.  ARCADIS is responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and the 
coordination of all instruments of its services including designs, drawings, specifications, reports [Service Instruments] and other 
services provided under this Agreement. 

1.4 Applicable Codes.  The Service Instruments will conform to the generally accepted codes and regulations applicable to the Project at 
the time of performance. 

1.5 Indemnification.  ARCADIS agrees to indemnify and hold Client harmless from all losses and damages resulting from ARCADIS's 
failure to meet the Standard of Care. 

1.6 Contract Documents.  The Service Instruments shall incorporate ARCADIS's standard construction documents [Contract Docu-
ments].  In any event, ARCADIS shall be an additional insured on all liability and property damage insurance policies which the 
construction contractor(s) for the Project [Contractor] shall be required to provide.  All contracts between Client and Contractor for 
the Project shall require the Contractor to indemnify and hold Client and ARCADIS harmless from any and all legal actions and 
liabilities arising out of the construction of the Project including, but not limited to, injury to or death of any person or injury or 
destruction of tangible property, not caused by the sole negligence of the party to be indemnified. 

1.7 Subcontractors.  Any subcontractors and outside associates or consultants to be engaged by ARCADIS under this Agreement are 
limited to those identified in Schedules A and B, or as Client specifically approves during the performance of this Agreement. 

1.8 Hazardous Wastes.  Client represents that the Project does not contemplate the performance of services, professional or otherwise, 
related to hazardous or toxic wastes, material, or substances and other pollutants.  ARCADIS shall not be responsible for and, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, shall be held harmless from all costs and other liabilities arising from the presence in or about the 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 2 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

Project of hazardous or toxic wastes, material or substances and other pollutants, whether or not designated as such by law or regula-
tion.

1.9 Construction Phase Services.  ARCADIS shall provide construction phase Services in accordance with Schedule A and act as 
Client's representative at the Site in accordance with the General Conditions of the Contract Documents as modified by Schedule D.  

1.9.1 In the event the construction phase services are provided by another party, ARCADIS shall not be responsible for all claims, 
damages, losses and expenses, including attorneys' fees arising out of, or resulting from, any interpretation, clarification, substitu-
tion, acceptance, shop drawing or sample approval or modifications of such documentation issued or carried out by Client or 
others or construction observation carried out by others.  Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed to release 
ARCADIS or ARCADIS's consultants from liability for failure to perform in accordance with professional standards any duty or 
responsibility which ARCADIS has undertaken or assumed under this Agreement. 

2 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

2.1 Scope.  ARCADIS will provide the Additional Services described in Schedule B when authorized in writing by Client. 

3 CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Unless stated otherwise in Section 8, Client shall do the following in a timely manner: 

3.1 Client's Representative.  Designate a representative having authority to give instructions, receive information, define Client's 
policies, and make decisions with respect to the Project. 

3.2 Project Criteria.  Provide all criteria and information as to Client's requirements for the Project, including design objectives and 
constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, and any budgetary limitations.  Furnish copies of all design and 
construction standards which Client will require to be included in the Service Instruments. 

3.3 Data.  Provide all available information, including previous reports and any other data in the possession of Client relevant to design
or construction of the Project.  These data may include (1) data prepared by others, including borings, subsurface explorations, hydro-
graphic surveys, and laboratory tests and inspections of samples, materials and equipment, (2)  appropriate professional interpreta-
tions of such data, (3) environmental assessments and impact statements, (4)  property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, 
topographic and utility surveys, (5) property descriptions, zoning, deed and other land use restrictions, and (6)  other necessary
special data or consultations.  ARCADIS may rely on the accuracy and completeness of the supplied data. 

3.4 Surveys.  Provide engineering surveys to define construction reference points to enable Contractor to lay out Project construction. 

3.5 Access.  Arrange for ARCADIS to enter upon public and private property as necessary. 

3.6 Review.  Examine the Service Instruments and obtain the advice of attorneys, insurance counselors or other consultants as Client 
thinks appropriate.  Render written decisions concerning the Service Instruments within a reasonable time. 

3.7 Permits.  Furnish approvals and permits from governmental authorities and other entities having jurisdiction over the Project and 
approvals from others as may be necessary for the timely completion of the Project. 

3.8 Expert Advice.  Provide legal, accounting, insurance or other necessary advisory services for the Project including any documents 
submitted by ARCADIS.  Client expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Services provided do not and shall not include the 
practice of law or other legal services, nor any form of professional accounting or insurance advisory services. 

3.9 Site Representative.  If Client designates a person other than ARCADIS to represent Client at the Site, specify the duties, 
responsibilities and limitations of authority of such other person and the effect on ARCADIS's duties and responsibilities in a
schedule attached to this Agreement. 

3.10 Ancillary Costs.  If the Construction Cost includes the cost of the activities described in 3.7 through 3.10, provide an estimate of 
such costs to ARCADIS for Project cost estimating purposes. 

3.11 Meetings.  Attend the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conference, construction progress and other job related 
meetings, and Substantial Completion and Final Payment inspections. 

3.12 Project Developments.  Give prompt written notice to ARCADIS whenever Client observes or otherwise becomes aware of any 
development that affects the scope or timing of ARCADIS's services, or any defect or non-conformance in the work of any 
Contractor.



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 3 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

4 PERIODS OF SERVICE

4.1 Time of Performance.  Sections 4 and 5 anticipate the orderly and continuous progress of the Services through completion of 
construction.  The time of performance is the period reasonably expected to be required for the design, award of contracts, con-
struction and initial operation of the Project, including any necessary Client or regulatory agency review and approval. 

4.2 Delays.  If Schedule A specifies periods of time for performance of Services or specific dates by which services are to be completed 
and if such periods or dates are exceeded through no fault of ARCADIS, the compensation specified under Section 5 shall be subject
to equitable adjustment. 

4.3 Start of Performance.  ARCADIS will start the Basic Services upon authorization by Client.  Unless otherwise stated in this 
Agreement, signing of this Agreement by both Client and ARCADIS will constitute such authorization.  If Client elects to authorize
ARCADIS to proceed before signing this Agreement, ARCADIS shall be paid as if the Services had been performed after both 
parties signed the Agreement. 

4.4 Completion of Performance.  For the purposes of final payment under Section 5, completion of ARCADIS's Services will occur: 

4.4.1 for a study, investigation or planning activity:  upon delivery of the final report as specified in Schedule A or B, as appropriate;

4.4.2 for a design activity: when the Bid Set of Contract Documents is delivered as specified in Schedule A; 

4.4.3 for a bidding or construction contract negotiation activity:  upon issuance by Client of notice of award of the construction contract;

4.4.4 for a construction activity: when written recommendation of final payment for the last prime construction contract of the Project is 
issued; and 

4.4.5 for a startup or operations activity: upon the earlier of successful completion of acceptance testing by the Contractor or beneficial
occupancy by Client but, in any event, not later than one year after Substantial Completion. 

4.5 Force Majeure.  If a force, event, or circumstance beyond ARCADIS's control interrupts or delays ARCADIS's performance, the 
time of performance of the Basic or Additional Services shall be equitably adjusted. 

5 COMPENSATION

5.1 Basic Services.  Client shall pay ARCADIS the Amount stated in invoices issued in accordance with Schedule C [Pricing Schedule]
for work performed and Reimbursable Expenses incurred during the period covered by the invoice.  Invoices are due and payable 
within 30 days after receipt by Client.  Client’s payments shall be in the form and shall be sent to the ARCADIS address as described
in the invoices. 

5.2 Remittance Information. Bank of America ACH Bank routing (ABA) number: 071 000 039; or Wire Transfer routing (ABA) 
number: 026 009 593, Account number: 8188093937, Account name: ARCADIS US, Inc. Lockbox Account, SWIFT Code for 
international payments: BOFAUS3N. Send eMail notifications of payment to: Remit-Mailbox@arcadis-us.com. To send a check, use 
the following information (FOR U.S. MAIL and COURIER DELIVERY) - ARCADIS US, Inc., 62638 Collections Center Drive, 
Chicago, IL  60693-0626. 

5.3 Additional Services.  Client shall pay ARCADIS for Additional Services performed pursuant to Client's authorization and invoiced 
in accordance with the Pricing Schedule. 

5.4 Litigation Services.  If Client requires ARCADIS's services either as a witness in, or in support of, litigation or other dispute 
resolution procedures between Client and a third party, ARCADIS will provide such services in accordance with a Pricing Schedule
for litigation services. 

5.5 Delay or Termination.

5.5.1 If Client delays the performance of, or payment for, services under this Agreement for more than 3 months for a reason(s) other
than ARCADIS's fault, ARCADIS may suspend performance until it receives payment in full for services rendered and expenses 
incurred to the date of suspension. 

5.5.2 If Client terminates this Agreement prior to completion of the Basic Services, ARCADIS shall be paid in full for services rendered
and expenses incurred to the date of termination, including reasonable demobilization and termination expenses. 

5.6 Disputed Amounts.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7, if Client disputes an item(s) or amount(s) contained in an invoice, 
Client agrees to pay the balance of the undisputed invoiced amounts to ARCADIS in accordance with Schedule C. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 4 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

6 OPINIONS OF CONSTRUCTION COST

6.1 Construction Cost.  The cost of constructing the Project [Construction Cost] means the total cost to Client of those portions of the 
Project designed and specified in the Service Instruments. Construction Cost will not include ARCADIS's compensation and 
expenses, the cost of land, rights of way, or compensation for properties unless specified in Schedule A.  Construction Cost will also 
not include Client's legal, accounting, or insurance counseling services, or interest and financing charges incurred in connection with 
the Project, or the cost of services to be provided by others under paragraphs 3.6 and 3.8 unless otherwise specified in Schedule A. 

6.2 Opinions of Cost.  ARCADIS has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, or over the 
Contractor's methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions. ARCADIS's opinion of probable 
Construction Cost is made on the basis of ARCADIS's experience and qualifications and represents ARCADIS's judgment as an 
experienced and qualified professional engineering firm, familiar with the construction industry.  ARCADIS does not guarantee that
proposals, bids or actual Project cost will not vary from ARCADIS's opinions of probable Construction Cost. 

7 GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 Changes.  By written notice at any time, Client may change the Basic Services, provided such changes are within the general scope 
of the services contemplated by this Agreement.  In such event, an equitable adjustment both in the compensation for and time of
performance of the Agreement shall be made in writing prior to ARCADIS's performing the changed services. 

7.2 Confidentiality.  ARCADIS will hold secret and confidential all information designated by Client as confidential [Confidential
Information].  ARCADIS will not reveal Confidential Information to a third party unless:  

7.2.1 Client consents in writing; 
7.2.2 the information is or becomes part of the public domain; 
7.2.3 ARCADIS lawfully possessed the information before receipt from Client; 
7.2.4 applicable law, regulation, court order or an agency of competent jurisdiction requires its disclosure; or 
7.2.5 failure to disclose the information would pose an imminent and substantial threat to human health or the environment. 

7.3 Professional Service.  The Service Instruments furnished under this Agreement are the tangible results of ARCADIS's Services for 
the Project and ARCADIS shall have the right to use or reuse and retain the copyright of such Service Instruments for its purposes, at 
its sole risk and without liability to Client.  Client may retain copies in connection with the use or occupancy of the Project.

7.3.1 Reuse.  ARCADIS does not represent the Service Instruments to be suitable for reuse by Client or others for extensions of the 
Project or on any other project.  Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by ARCADIS for the specific purpose 
intended is at Client's sole risk, without liability to ARCADIS.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle ARCADIS to com-
pensation at rates to be agreed on by Client and ARCADIS. 

7.3.2 CADD.  ARCADIS may provide information related to the Service Instruments in computer-assisted design and drafting format 
[CADD] to Client.  CADD is derived in part from computer software for which ARCADIS is licensed.  These licenses are not 
transferable.  Any unlicensed reuse of CADD may subject the user to liabilities to the software licensor. 

7.3.3 Electronic Media.  Either party to this Agreement may rely on the data or information set forth on paper (also known as “hard 
copies”) that the party receives from the sending party by mail, hand delivery, or facsimile as items the sending party intended to 
send.  Data or information sent in electronic media format by one party to the other party are furnished only for the convenience of 
the receiving party and shall not be relied upon by the receiving party.  If there is a discrepancy between the data received in
electronic media format and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.  Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from the
data in electronic media format shall be at the user’s sole risk. When transferring documents in electronic media format, the 
sending party makes no representations as to the long term compatibility, usability, or readability of such documents resulting from 
the use of software, application packages, operating systems or computer hardware differing from those used by the document’s 
creator.

7.4 Insurance.  ARCADIS will maintain insurance against the following risks during the term of the Agreement: 

7.4.1 workers compensation in statutory amounts and employer's liability for ARCADIS's employees' Project-related injuries or disease;

7.4.2 general liability and automobile liability each in the amount of $1,000,000 for personal injury or property damage to third parties
which arises from ARCADIS's performance under this Agreement; and 

7.4.3 professional liability in the amount of $1,000,000 for legal obligations arising out of ARCADIS's failure to meet the Standard of
Care.

7.5 Interpretation and Forum.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State. Any litigation shall be 
brought in Miami County, Ohio. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 5 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

7.6 Successors.  This Agreement is binding on the successors and assigns of Client and ARCADIS.  The Agreement may not be assigned 
in whole or in part to any third parties without the written consent of both Client and ARCADIS. 

7.7 Independent Contractor.  ARCADIS represents that it is an independent contractor and is not an employee of Client. 

7.8 Disputes.  If any dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, then in the first instance, representatives of 
both parties shall endeavor in good faith to negotiate a settlement of the dispute.  If such dispute cannot be settled through direct
discussions by such representatives of the parties, then higher level representatives of both parties shall endeavor in good faith to 
negotiate a settlement of such dispute.  If such dispute cannot be settled through direct discussion by such higher level representatives
of the parties, then the parties agree to submit the matter to mediation before having recourse to a judicial forum.  No written or oral 
representation made during the course of any settlement negotiations or mediation shall be deemed a party admission. 

7.9 Notices.  Written notices may be delivered in person or by certified mail, by facsimile, or by courier.  All notices shall be effective
upon the date of receipt by the party.  Notices shall be delivered or sent to the designated representative of the other party at the 
address given on the last page of this Agreement.  An address may only be changed by written notice. 

7.10 Applicable Law.  If applicable to this Agreement, ARCADIS will comply with the requirements of: 

7.10.1 the Equal Employment Opportunity clause in Section 202 of Executive Order 11246, as amended, 
7.10.2 Utilization of Small and Disadvantaged Business Concerns (Public Law 95-507), and 
7.10.3 all other federal, state and local laws and regulations or orders issued under such laws. 

7.11 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including any schedules, attachments and referenced documents, is the entire agreement 
between Client and ARCADIS.  Any prior or contemporaneous agreements, promises, negotiations or representations not expressly 
stated herein are of no force and effect.  Any changes to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by Client and ARCADIS. 

7.12 Waivers and Severability.  A waiver or breach of any term, condition, or covenant by a party shall not constitute a waiver or breach 
of any other term, condition or covenant.  If any court of competent jurisdiction declares a provision of this Agreement invalid,
illegal, or otherwise unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

7.13 Effective Date.  Unless stated otherwise in Schedule A, this Agreement is effective on the date shown on the cover page. 

8 SECTION 8 -- SPECIAL PROVISIONS, EXHIBITS and SCHEDULES

8.1 Special Provisions. This Agreement is subject to the following special provisions: 

8.1.1 (None)

8.2 Schedules. The following Schedules are attached to and made a part of this Agreement: 

8.2.1 Schedule A "Scope of Basic Engineering Services and Related Matters" 

8.2.2 Schedule B "Additional or Optional Engineering Services" 

8.2.3 Schedule C "Pricing Schedule" 

8.2.4 Schedule D "Construction Phase Services" 

8.2.5 Exhibit C.1 “Cost Summary” 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 6 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

Execution Authority.  This Agreement is a valid and authorized undertaking of Client and ARCADIS.  The representatives of Client and 
ARCADIS who have signed below have been authorized to do so.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and year shown on the 
cover page. 

CLIENT ARCADIS U.S., INC. 

By  ______________________________________  By     ___________________________________ 

Title  _____________________________________  Title  ___________________________________ 

Where applicable to the jurisdiction: 
        Engineer License or Certificate No.____________________ 

        State of  _________________________________________ 

Witness  ___________________________________  Witness _________________________________ 

Date Signed:________________________________  Date Signed:______________________________ 

Address for Giving Notices:     Address for Giving Notices: 

201 West Water Street      4665 Cornell Road, Suite 350 
Piqua, Ohio 45356      Cincinnati, Ohio 45241 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 7 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

Schedule A
Scope of Basic Engineering Services and Related Matters

A.1 Preliminary Work Schedule: ARCADIS shall use reasonable efforts to complete its work by December 31, 2013. 

A.2 Subcontractors required for activities under this Schedule A are identified hereafter. 

A.3 The scope of Basic Services1 are described hereafter. 

The basic services to be performed by ARCADIS under this Agreement include environmental permitting, 
preparation of detailed design documents, and bidding assistance for the Great Miami River Interceptor 
Siphon Line Improvements.  This project generally consists of approximately 400 linear feet 24-inch-
diameter siphon pipe that crosses the Great Miami River with connections and modifications to existing 
siphon structures. 

1. PROJECT PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT 
a. Develop a Project Plan. 
b. Develop a Project Schedule 
c. Conduct internal ARCADIS staff meetings. 
d. Monitor and control the project staffing, budget, and schedule. 
e. Conduct quality assurance and quality control reviews. 

2. PROJECT COORDINATION AND MEETINGS 
a. Conduct a project kickoff meeting with the Client at the beginning of the project. 
b. Conduct three progress meetings with the Client for preliminary design, 30% design, and 90% design. 

ARCADIS will furnish meeting agendas and meeting minutes for each progress meeting. The purpose of the 
meetings will be to keep the Client informed throughout the project, seek input on applicable issues, and 
ensure that that input is incorporated into the project. Discussions will also focus on the selection of 
construction materials and providing more reliable and flexible operation and maintenance of the facilities. 

c. ARCADIS will coordinate project requirements among subconsultants, regulatory agencies and the City of 
Piqua.

1) WPCLF Coordination – ARCADIS will coordinate with Ohio EPA to provide the necessary 
documents and approval required for WPCLF funding. 

d. Attend one City Council meeting for the reading of this contract. 

3. PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
a. ARCADIS will review the SWMM modeled flows at the siphon to confirm the pipe size and level of service 

for proposed Miami River Interceptor Siphon.  
b. Structural investigation and inspection work will be performed to determine the condition of the East Side and 

West Side Siphon Chambers. 
c. Preliminary Design Memorandum - ARCADIS will prepare a Preliminary Design Memorandum that includes 

the results of the structural investigation, confirms the level of service being provided with the additional 24-
inch-diameter pipe, identifies and evaluates methods for installing the pipe across the river, and recommends 
the most cost effective option for detailed design.  

1 Construction phase services under this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with Schedule D insofar as applicable and 
appropriate.



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 8 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

d. ARCADIS will meet with the City of Piqua to discuss the detailed alternatives presented in the report and 
may evaluate any additional alternatives discussed in the meeting.  ARCADIS will incorporate the 
recommendations from the report and meeting into the detailed design. 

4. DETAIL DESIGN SERVICES 
a. ARCADIS will prepare drawings to show the general scope, extent and character of the work to be furnished 

and performed by Contractor(s) (hereinafter called "Drawings") Drawings will be prepared to show the site 
plans, piping plan and profiles, and detailed connections and modifications to existing siphon chamnber.  

b. Construction specifications will be prepared to supplement the detailed design drawings.  The specifications 
will be in ARCADIS's Standard Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) Specification format. 

c. ARCADIS will prepare for review and approval by Client, ARCADIS Standard Front-End Documents 
including Contract Bond, Bid Guaranty and Contract Bond, Owner-Contractor Agreement forms, General 
Conditions, Bid Forms, Notice to Bidders, and Instructions to Bidders, and other related documents. 

d. ARCADIS will provide review submittals to the client at approximately the 30%, 60% and 90% design 
completion stages. 

e. Design Assumption – The design fee assumes the east and west side siphon chambers are structurally sound 
and do not require rehabilitation or replacement.  

f. Permit-to-Install - ARCADIS will prepare and submit an Ohio EPA Permit-to-Install (PTI) application for the 
project that includes drawings, specifications, design criteria, and other pertinent data as required to 
supplement the application. The City of Piqua will pay for the Permit-to-Install application and plan review 
fees.

5. COST ESTIMATING 
a. An opinion of probable construction costs will be developed at various stages of the project for the items 

under our scope of work. Unit costs will be based on manufacturer’s quotes, cost estimating manuals, and 
recent ARCADIS construction cost estimating experience. These costs will include allowances for contractor 
overhead and profit including contingency. Additionally, the costs will be broken down by construction trade 
by specification division. 

b. It is anticipated that estimates will be made at the following milestones: 
1) Initial estimate at completion of 30% design. 
2) Update at completion of 60% design. 
3) Update at completion of 90% design. 
4) Finalize at the initial advertisement date. 

6. BIDDING ASSISTANCE SERVICES 
a. ARCADIS will prepare and issue bidding documents to potential bidders and keep a record of their issuance. 

A maximum of 15 sets of “unpaid” bidding documents are included for distribution to, and/or use by, 
ARCADIS, the Client, Ohio EPA, other potential permitting agencies, and various construction industry plan 
holders. It is assumed that all other sets will be sold to potential bidders at a cost that will be close to the cost 
of reproduction and delivery. 

b. Prepare and issue addenda to each procurer of the bidding documents. 
c. Provide non-binding information on the general scope as requested by procurers of bidding documents. 
d. Attend a pre-bid conference. 
e. Attend the opening and reading of the bids. 
f. Review the bids and make recommendations to the Client regarding the award of the contract. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING 
a. ARCADIS will provide correspondence for state and federal threatened and endangered species. ARCADIS 

will perform habitat surveys but assumes that detailed species surveys will not be necessary. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 9 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

b. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 Nationwide Permit Pre-Construction Notification (PCN) 
preparation. ARCADIS assumes that individual permits (404 and/or 401) and wetland or stream mitigation 
will not be necessary for the project.  

c. Site visit with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and response to comments from the regulatory agencies. 
d. Local floodplain approval. ARCADIS will correspond with the local floodplain authority to obtain approval 

for temporary construction in the floodplain.  ARCADIS assumes no modeling will be necessary for the 
project and that FEMA approval will not be necessary. 

e. Cultural Resources investigation. ARCADIS will subcontract with Weller and Associates to perform a 
desktop review of the project and a Phase I Survey. ARCADIS assumes that a Phase II/III Survey is not 
required.

f. Miami Conservancy District – Prepare the permit application to be submitted to the Miami Conservancy 
District.

g. The City of Piqua will pay any permit or application fees. 

8. SURVEYING AND EASEMENTS 
a. ARCADIS will procure the services of a subconsultant (The Kleingers Group) to conduct a topographic 

surveying for the project. The surveying work will result in the development of a topographic map of the 
project area. In general, the map will include contours, existing utilities, structures, property lines, rights-of-
way, easements, and all other significant topographic features within the designated area. 

b. Based on existing information, it is assumed that easement acquisition is not required for this project.

9. GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES 
a. ARCADIS will procure the services of a subconsultant (Bowser-Morner) to provide geotechnical work related 

to subsurface conditions, and analyses of the proposed siphon alignment.  
b. Borings samples will be classified in accordance with the unified soil and rock classification system, and 

prepare formal boring logs using the driller’s logs and laboratory classification.  
c. Laboratory tests will be in accordance with ASTM or other recognized standard as necessary to provide 

information as required to form the basis for the analyses and recommendations as will be outlined in the 
report.

d. Geotechnical Investigation Report will be provided that will include the data and boring logs and an 
interpretation of the project subsurface conditions. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 10 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

Schedule B
Additional or Optional Engineering Services

B.1 The Scope of Additional Services consists of this page plus the following documents, attached and made part of this 
Agreement: 

a. N/A

B.2 If authorized in writing by Client, ARCADIS shall furnish Additional or Optional Engineering Services of the types 
described below.  These services are not included as part of Basic Engineering Services except to the extent provided 
otherwise in this Schedule B. 

a. Services resulting from significant changes in general scope of the project, such as revising previously 
approved studies, reports, design documents, drawings, or specifications when such revisions are due to 
causes beyond the control of ARCADIS. 

b. Construction Phase Services. 

c. Resident Project Representative Services. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 11 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

Schedule C
Pricing Schedule

C.1 The Pricing Schedule consists of this page plus the following documents, attached and made part of this Agreement: 

a. N/A 

C.2 Terms of Payment 

C.2.1 Rates. For Basic Services under Section 1, Client shall pay ARCADIS on the basis of actual hourly rates plus overhead and 
profit for technical work actually performed. 

The estimated cost of the Consultant's services under Section 1 is $150,900. The estimated rates per task are provided in Exhibit 
C.1, attached.

C.3 Reimbursable Expenses.  Project expenses incurred with subcontractors and outside vendors will be invoiced at cost plus 10% 
to cover handling.  In-house expenses not subject to handling costs may include, but are not limited to: shipping charges; printing;
reproduction; supplies; equipment; traveling expenses; transportation; special insurance; licenses; permits; and subcontracted 
services. Traveling expenses shall be preapproved by Client. 

In-house services not subject to handling costs are: 
Transportation:    $0.56/mile 

C.4 Invoices. ARCADIS will submit invoices to Client for each month during which services were performed.  Invoices may include 
carrying charges at 1.5% per month for delinquent payments outstanding over 30 days and applicable sales or value-added taxes.

C.5 Remittance Information. Bank of America ACH Bank routing (ABA) number: 071 000 039; or Wire Transfer routing (ABA) 
number: 026 009 593, Account number: 8188093937, Account name: ARCADIS US, Inc. Lockbox Account, SWIFT Code for 
international payments: BOFAUS3N. Send eMail notifications of payment to: Remit-Mailbox@arcadis-us.com. To send a check, 
use the following information (FOR U.S. MAIL and COURIER DELIVERY) - ARCADIS US, Inc., 62638 Collections Center 
Drive, Chicago, IL  60693-0626.



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 12 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

Schedule D
Construction Phase Services

D.1 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

Note:  For purposes of this Schedule, the expressions Contract Documents, Shop Drawing, and Change Order shall have the meanings given 
in the Construction Contract between Client and the Contractor. 

1.  General Administration of Construction Contract.  ARCADIS shall consult with and advise Client and act as Client's representative 
as provided in this Agreement.  All of Client's instructions to Contractor will be issued through ARCADIS who will have authority to act on 
behalf of Client to the extent provided in this Agreement. 

2. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction.  In connection with observations of the work of Contractor while it is in progress: 

2.1 ARCADIS shall make visits to the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as ARCADIS deems necessary
to observe, as an experienced and qualified design professional, the progress and quality of the Contractor's work (Work).  In addition,
ARCADIS shall provide the services of a Resident Project Representative (Resident) at the site to provide more extensive inspection of the 
Work.  Based on information obtained during such visits and on its inspections, ARCADIS shall endeavor to determine whether the Work is 
proceeding in accordance with the intent of the Contract Documents.   ARCADIS shall keep Client informed of the progress of the Work. 

2.2 The Resident will be ARCADIS's agent or employee and under ARCADIS's supervision.  The duties and responsibilities of the 
Resident are set forth in  Article D.2, "Duties, Responsibilities and Limitation of Authority of Resident Project Representative," below. 

2.3 The purpose of ARCADIS's visits to and representation by the Resident at the site will be to provide for Client a greater degree of 
confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents and that the integrity of the design concept as 
reflected in the Contract Documents has been implemented and preserved by Contractor. 

2.4 ARCADIS shall not, during such visits or as a result of observations or inspections of the Work in progress, supervise, direct or 
have control over the Work nor shall ARCADIS have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures of construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to the work of Contractor or for any failure 
of Contractor to comply with laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes or orders applicable to Contractor furnishing and performing the 
Work.  ARCADIS can neither guarantee the performance of the Work by the Contractor nor assume responsibility for Contractor's failure to 
furnish and perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

3.  Defective Work.  During its visits, ARCADIS may disapprove of or reject the Work while it is in progress if ARCADIS believes that 
the Work will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to the Contract  Documents or that it will prejudice the integrity of 
the design concept of the Project as reflected in the Contract Documents. 

4.  Interpretations and Clarifications.  ARCADIS shall issue necessary interpretations and clarifications of the Contract Documents and 
in connection therewith prepare Change Orders for execution by Client, if appropriate. 

5.  Shop Drawings.  ARCADIS shall review and approve (or take other appropriate action) Shop Drawings, samples and other data which 
Contractor is required to submit.  Such reviews shall be for conformance with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole and 
compliance with the information given in the Contract Documents.  Any approvals or other actions associated with the reviews shall not 
extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction or to safety precautions and programs incident thereto.

6.  Substitutes.  ARCADIS shall evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or 'equivalent' materials and equipment proposed by 
Contractor.

7.  Inspections and Tests.  ARCADIS shall have authority, as Client's representative, to require special inspection or testing of the work, 
and shall review all certificates of inspections, testings and approvals required by law or the Contract Documents to determine that both the 
content of the certificates and the certified inspection or test results comply substantially with such requirements. 

8.  Disputes between Client and Contractor.  ARCADIS shall act as the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents 
and judge of the acceptability of the work thereunder and make decisions on all claims of Client or Contractor relating to the acceptability
of the Work or the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

9.  Applications for Payment.  Based on ARCADIS's on-site observations, on information provided by the Resident, and on review of 
applications for payment and the accompanying data and schedules, ARCADIS shall: 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 13 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

9.1 Recommend in writing payments to Contractor.  Such recommendations of payment will constitute a representation to Client that
the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that, to the best of ARCADIS's knowledge, information and belief, the quality of the 
Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon 
Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents and to any other qualifications stated in 
the recommendations. 

9.2 In the case of unit price Work, include final determinations of quantities and classifications of the Work in the recommendations of 
payment, subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Contract Documents. 

9.3 By recommending any payment ARCADIS will not thereby be deemed to have represented that exhaustive, continuous or detailed 
reviews or examinations beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ARCADIS in this Agreement and the Contract Documents have 
been made by ARCADIS to check the quality or quantity of the Work as it is furnished and performed.  ARCADIS is not responsible to 
examine how or for what purposes the Contractor has used the moneys paid on account, or to determine that title to any of the Work,
materials or equipment has passed to Client free and clear of any lien, claims, security interests or encumbrances, or that there may not be 
other matters at issue between Client and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid. 

10.  Contractor's Completion Documents.  ARCADIS shall receive and review maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, 
guarantees, bonds and certificates of inspection, tests, approvals,  and record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. Such review is limited to determining that their content complies with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents ARCADIS shall transmit the documents to Client with written comments. 

11.  Inspections.  ARCADIS shall conduct an inspection to determine if the work is substantially complete and a final inspection to 
determine if the completed Work is acceptable so that ARCADIS may recommend, in writing, final payment to Contractor.  ARCADIS may 
give written notice to Client and the Contractor that the Work is acceptable (subject to any conditions therein expressed), but any such 
recommendation and notice will be subject to the limitations expressed in paragraph 9.3. 

12.  Limitation of Responsibilities.  ARCADIS shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, or of any subcontractor 
or supplier, or any of the Contractor's or subcontractor's or supplier's agents or employees or any other persons (except ARCADIS's own 
employees and agents) at the site or otherwise furnishing or performing any of the Work.  However, nothing contained in paragraphs 1 thru 
11, shall be construed to release ARCADIS from liability for failure to properly perform the duties and responsibilities assumed by 
ARCADIS in the Contract Documents. 

D.2  DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF RESIDENT PROJECT 
REPRESENTATIVE

The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project Representative (Resident) are limited to those of ARCADIS in Schedules A and B 
and are further described as follows: 

1.  General.  The Resident is ARCADIS's agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of ARCADIS, and will confer 
with ARCADIS regarding Resident's actions.  Resident's dealings in matters pertaining to the on-site Work shall in general be with
ARCADIS and Contractor, but keeping Client advised as appropriate.  Resident's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with 
the full knowledge and approval of Contractor.  Resident shall generally communicate with Client with the knowledge of and under the 
direction of ARCADIS. 

2.  Duties and Responsibilities.  The Resident shall: 

2.1 Schedules:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and schedule of values prepared by Contractor 
and consult with ARCADIS concerning acceptability. 

2.2 Conferences and Meetings:  Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job 
conferences and other project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

2.3 Liaison:

2.3.1 Serve as ARCADIS's liaison with Contractor, working principally through Contractor's superintendent and assist in explaining the 
intent of the Contract Documents as necessary. 

2.3.2 Assist ARCADIS in serving as Client's liaison with Contractor when Contractor's operations affect Client's on-site operations.

2.3.2 Assist in obtaining from Client additional details or information, when required for proper execution of the Work. 

2.4 Shop Drawings and Samples:

2.4.1 Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 14 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

2.4.2 Receive samples which are furnished at the site by Contractor and notify ARCADIS of availability of samples for examination.

2.4.3 Advise ARCADIS and Contractor of the commencement of any Work requiring a Shop Drawing or sample if the submittal has not
yet been received and approved by ARCADIS. 

2.5 Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests:

2.5.1 Conduct on-site inspections of Work in progress to determine whether the Work is proceeding in general compliance with the
Contract Documents. 

2.5.2 Report to ARCADIS whenever Resident believes that any Work is unsatisfactory, faulty or defective, or does not conform to the 
Contract Documents, has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made.
 Advise ARCADIS of Work that Resident believes should be corrected or rejected, should be uncovered for inspection, or requires
special testing, inspection or approval. 

2.5.3 Verify that tests, equipment and systems startups, and operating and maintenance training are conducted in the presence of
appropriate personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof.  Observe, record and report to ARCADIS 
appropriate details relative to the test procedures and startups. 

2.5.4 Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the Project, record the results of 
these inspections and report to ARCADIS. 

2.6 Interpretation of Contract Documents:  Report to ARCADIS when clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are 
needed.  Transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations issued by ARCADIS. 

2.7 Modifications.  Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggested changes to Drawings or Specifications and report to ARCADIS with 
Resident's recommendations.  Transmit ARCADIS's decisions to Contractor. 

2.8 Records:

2.8.1 Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, reproductions of 
original Contract Documents including all Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the 
execution of the Construction Contract, ARCADIS's clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports,
and

2.8.2 Keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor hours on the job site, weather conditions, data relative to questions concerning
Change Orders or changed conditions, list of job site visitors, daily activities, decisions, general observations, and specific, more 
detailed observations as in the case of test procedures.  Send copies to ARCADIS at appropriate intervals. 

2.8.3 Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, subcontractors and major suppliers of materials and equip-
ment. 

2.9 Reports:

2.9.1 Furnish reports at appropriate intervals to ARCADIS concerning progress of the Work and of Contractor's compliance with the
progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and sample submittals. 

2.9.2 Consult with ARCADIS in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or start of important phases of the Work. 

2.9.3 Draft proposed Change Orders, obtaining supporting information from Contractor, and recommend to ARCADIS. 

2.9.4 Report any accidents or unusual incidents to ARCADIS and Client immediately upon occurrence. 

2.10 Payment Requests:  Review Contractor's applications for payment for compliance with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents and forward with Resident's recommendations to ARCADIS.  The Resident will note the relationship of the payment requested
to the schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated in the Work. 

2.11 Certificates, Maintenance and Operation Manuals:  During the course of the Work, verify that certificates, maintenance and 
operation manuals and other data required to be furnished by Contractor are appropriate to the items actually installed and in accordance
with the Contract Documents.  The Resident will have this material delivered to ARCADIS for review and forwarded to Client prior to final 
payment for the Work. 

2.12 Completion:

2.12.1 Before ARCADIS issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to Contractor a list of observed items requiring comple-
tion or correction. 



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Page 15 of 15
Water/Wastewater Design and Construction Phase Assignments 
Between The City of Piqua, Ohio and ARCADIS U.S., Inc. Project Number: _________________  

June 5, 2013 

2.12.2 Determine whether necessary inspections and approvals by public agencies having jurisdiction over the Work have been 
performed and advise ARCADIS accordingly. 

2.12.3 Conduct a final inspection of the Work in the company of ARCADIS, Client, and Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be 
completed or corrected. 

2.12.4 Verify that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to  ARCADIS concerning 
acceptance of the Work. 

3.  Limitations of Authority.  The Resident: 

3.1 Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment unless authorized by
ARCADIS.

3.2 Shall not exceed limitations of ARCADIS's authority as set forth in this Agreement or the Contract Documents. 

3.3 Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors or Contractor's superintendent. 

3.4 Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are specifically required by the Contract Documents. 

3.5 Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions and programs in connection with the
Work. 

3.6 Shall not accept Shop Drawings or sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

3.7 Shall not authorize Client to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

3.8 Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others except as specifically authorized by 
ARCADIS.



To
ta
l

To
ta
l

Ta
sk

De
sc
rip

tio
n

PR
PM

PE
T

CL
1

CL
2

SM
SE

PE
C

Ho
ur
s

DL
�C
os
t

10
0

Pr
oj
ec
t�P

la
nn

in
g�
an

d�
M
an

ag
em

en
t

18
26

16
4

8
10

0
0

0
82

���
���
���
���
���

$3
,5
76

20
0

Pr
oj
ec
t�C

oo
rd
in
at
io
n�
an

d�
M
ee
tin

gs
10

32
60

0
0

0
0

0
0

10
2

���
���
���
���
�

$3
,8
72

30
0

De
si
gn
�S
er
vi
ce
s��
�C
iv
il/
Sa
ni
ta
ry

0
32

42
0

0
0

12
32

0
11

8
���
���
���
���
�

$4
,6
40

40
0

De
si
gn
�S
er
vi
ce
s��
�A
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
al

12
76

14
4

10
0

0
0

0
16

0
34

8
���
���
���
���
�

$1
1,
86

4
50

0
De

si
gn
�S
er
vi
ce
s��
�S
tr
uc
tu
ra
l

0
10

48
0

0
0

0
0

0
58

���
���
���
���
���

$1
,8
04

60
0

Pe
rm

it�
to
�In

st
al
l�a
nd

�W
PC

LF
�A
ss
is
ta
nc
e

0
28

56
0

0
0

0
0

0
84

���
���
���
���
���

$2
,8
56

70
0

Bi
dd

in
g�
As
si
st
an

ce
�S
er
vi
ce
s

0
32

28
0

0
0

0
0

11
2

17
2

���
���
���
���
�

$7
,0
72

80
0

En
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l�P
er
m
itt
in
g

0
8

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

���
���
���
���
���

$5
92

90
0

Su
rv
ey
in
g�
an

d�
Ea
se
m
en

ts
0

8
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

10
���
���
���
���
���

$4
24

10
00

G
eo

te
ch
ni
ca
l�S
er
vi
ce
s

0
20

28
0

0
0

0
0

0
48

���
���
���
���
���

$1
,7
04

�S
ub

to
ta
l�T
ot
al
�H
ou

rs
/D

ire
ct
�L
ab

or
$3

8,
40

4

Di
re
ct
�L
ab

or
�R
at
e

$7
2.
00

$4
6.
00

$2
8.
00

$2
8.
00

$2
3.
00

$3
4.
00

$5
4.
00

$4
2.
00

$4
3.
00

Su
bt
ot
al
�D
ire

ct
�P
lu
s�I
nd

ire
ct
�L
ab

or
M
ul
tip

lie
r

3.
16

���
���
���
���

$1
21

,3
57

In
si
de

�E
xp
en

se
s

In
vo
ic
in
g�
w
ill

�b
e�
ba
se
d�
on

�a
ct
ua
l�r
at
es
.

1,
10

0
�m

ile
s�a

t
$0

.5
6
/m

ile
�=

$6
71

To
ta
l�I
ns
id
e�
Ex
pe

ns
es

$6
71

P
R

 =
 P

rin
ci

pa
l E

ng
in

ee
r

P
M

 =
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
O
ut
si
de

�E
xp
en

se
s

P
E

 =
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

ng
in

ee
r

��M
isc

el
la
ne

ou
s

$1
06

T 
= 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
/C

ad
d 

O
pe

ra
to

r
O
ut
sid

e�
Re

pr
od

uc
tio

n
$5

00
S

S
E

 =
 S

en
io

r S
tru

ct
ur

al
 E

ng
in

ee
r

Po
st
ag
e

$1
00

S
E

 =
 S

tru
ct

ur
al

 E
ng

in
ee

r
O
ut
si
de

�E
xp
en

se
s

$7
06

IC
E

 =
 In

st
ru

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
C

on
tro

ls
 E

ng
in

ee
r

10
%

O
ut
sid

e�
Ex
pe

ns
e�
M
ar
ku
p

$7
1

P
E

C
 =

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
co

lo
gi

st
To

ta
l�O

ut
si
de

�E
xp
en

se
s

$1
,4
83

E
C

2 
= 

E
co

lo
gi

st
 2

C
1 

= 
C

le
ric

al
 1

Su
bc
on

su
lta

nt
s

C
1 

= 
C

le
ric

al
 2

Su
rv
ey
in
g�
(T
he

�K
le
in
ge
rs

�G
ro
up

)
$8

,0
00

Ge
ot
ec
hn

ic
al

�(B
ow

se
r�
M
or
ne

r)
$1

4,
30

0
Cu

ltu
ra
l�R
es
ou

rc
es

�(W
el
le
r�a

nd
�A
ss
oc
ia
te
s)

$2
,6
00

Su
bc
on

su
lta

nt
�C
os
t

$2
4,
90

0
10

%
Su
bc
on

su
lta

nt
�M

ar
ku
p

$2
,4
90

To
ta
l�S
ub

co
ns
ul
ta
nt
�C
os
t

$2
7,
39
0

SU
BT

O
TA

L
$1

50
,9
00

Co
nt
in
ge
nc
y

$0

TO
TA

L�
PR

O
JE
CT

�C
O
ST

$1
50

,9
00

EX
HI
BI
T�
C.
1

CO
ST
�S
U
M
M
AR

Y

G
RE

AT
�M

IA
M
I�R

IV
ER

�S
IP
HO

N
�IM

PR
O
VE

M
EN

T S
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y�
DE

SI
G
N
,�D

ES
IG
N
,�A

N
D�
BI
DD

IN
G
�P
HA

SE
S

LA
BO

R�
G
RA

DE
S,
�H
O
U
RS

�A
N
D�
CO

ST
S



RESOLUTION NO. R-118-13 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER 
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH FINFROCK CONSTRUCTION CO., INC., FOR 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE ELLERMAN, FISHER, GRANT, AND DOWNING WATER 
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, On August 7, 2013 and August 12, 2013, the City of Piqua advertised the 
Ellerman, Fisher, Grant, & Downing Water Distribution Improvements project for bidding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, On August 26, 2013, at 10:00 A.M. bids were opened by the City 
Engineering Department; and 
 

WHEREAS, Finfrock Construction Co., Inc., is the lowest and best bid; and 
 

WHEREAS, Finfrock Construction Co., Inc., has a past history of working within the City 
of Piqua in a satisfactory manner that conforms to the City of Piqua Specifications for 
Construction. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with Finfrock 
Construction Co., Inc. for construction of the Ellerman, Fisher, Grant, & Downing Water 
Distribution Improvements. 

   
SEC. 2: The cost involved is not to exceed $233,200 and will be funded by Water Plant 

Budget in 2013. 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby authorized 
to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in 
payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $233,200; 
 
 SEC. 4: In accordance with section 34.19 of the Piqua Municipal Code, this professional 
service does not need to be bid. 
 
 SEC. 5: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
             
       _______________________ 
       LUCINDA FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE September 3, 2013 
 

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 

A resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Finfrock 
Construction Co., Inc. for construction of the Ellerman, Fisher, Grant, & 
Downing Water Distribution Improvements   

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Todd Brandenburg, Superintendent 

Department:  Underground Utilities 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

As a critical element of the Water Distribution System Master Plan (July 2012) 
performed by CDM Smith, it has been recommended and is agreed upon by the 
Underground Utilities Department, that multiple areas within the City of Piqua 
Water Distribution System, currently served through 2” galvanized piping be 
improved with a water main replacement of 8” ductile iron pipe. 

This necessary improvement is vital to the City’s efforts in providing high 
quality drinking water to our customers along with assistance in eliminating 
disinfection by-products that form in City’s water distribution network. These 
improvements will also increase the City’s reliability of service to these areas.    

City Underground Utilities Department Staff along with CDM Smith indentified 
the following areas of known pipe deficiencies: 

• Fisher  

• Grant and Ellerman 

• Grant and Downing 

Upon identification of these areas City staff employed the services of Fanning 
and Howey through a professional service request for qualifications and began 
the design and permitting of this project.  

On August 7, 2013, the request for bidders for this improvement project was 
advertised and again advertised for a second time August 12, 2013. On August 
26, 2013, at 10:00 A.M., bids were opened at the City Engineering Department 
through the bidexpress.com program. 

Three bids were received and analyzed by City staff and it was determined that 
Finfrock Construction Co., Inc., is the lowest and best bid for this project.        

BUDGETING AND Budgeted $:  $270,000 



FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Expenditure $:  $233,200 

Source of Funds: Local (Water Dept. 403 Fund)  
Narrative  $270,000 was originally budgeted in the 2013 Water 

Capital Improvement budget. Competitive bidding and 
proper project timing has resulted in an actual bid of 
$233,200.  This project budget does include a 10% 
contingency. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with Finfrock 
Construction Co., Inc., to provide watermain construction services for the 
Ellerman, Fisher, Grant, and Downing Water Distribution Improvements.    

2. Deny the resolution and continue to operate portions of the water 
distribution system with known deficiencies, decreased water quality and 
reliability. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE The construction of this project will commence as soon as possible with 

substantial completion scheduled for 180 calendar days from the notice to 
proceed. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval of the Resolution to enter into an agreement with Finfrock 
Construction Co., Inc., for construction of the Ellerman, Fisher, Grant, & Downing 
Water Distribution Improvements   

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit “A” – Bid Tab Report 13-12   

 



C
ity

 O
f P

iq
ua

 1
3-

12
 F

is
he

r, 
El

le
rm

an
, G

ra
nt

, D
ow

ni
ng

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

B
id

 T
ab

 
B

id
 D

at
e:

 A
ug

us
t 2

6,
 2

01
3 

(1
0:

00
 a

.m
.)

Ite
m

Q
ua

nt
ity

Pr
ic

e
Ex

te
ns

io
n

Pr
ic

e
Ex

te
ns

io
n

Pr
ic

e
Ex

te
ns

io
n

1.
 - 

B
O

N
D

IN
G

 &
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 - 

L.
S

.
1.

00
   

   
   

2,
54

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

54
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
01

3.
32

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

01
3.

32
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2.
 - 

M
O

B
IL

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 - 

L.
S

.
1.

00
   

   
   

2,
26

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

26
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
44

1.
64

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

44
1.

64
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
65

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

65
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3.
 - 

C
LE

A
R

IN
G

 &
 G

R
U

B
B

IN
G

 - 
L.

S
.

1.
00

   
   

   
2,

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
57

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

57
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4.

 - 
C

O
M

P
A

C
TI

O
N

/D
E

N
S

IT
Y

 T
E

S
TI

N
G

 - 
L.

S
.

1.
00

   
   

   
2,

17
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
17

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
57

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

57
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5.

 - 
S

IT
E

 R
E

S
TO

R
A

TI
O

N
 - 

L.
S

.
1.

00
   

   
   

2,
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

34
2.

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
34

2.
54

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

80
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

6.
 - 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E
 O

F 
TR

A
FF

IC
 - 

L.
S

.
1.

00
   

   
   

1,
80

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

80
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
07

2.
18

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

07
2.

18
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

7.
 - 

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 L
A

Y
O

U
T 

S
TA

K
IN

G
 - 

L.
S

.
1.

00
   

   
   

1,
90

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

90
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
49

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

49
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

8.
 - 

S
E

E
D

IN
G

 - 
L.

S
.

1.
00

   
   

   
1,

32
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
32

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

99
5.

20
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
99

5.
20

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
9.

 - 
1-

1/
2"

 A
S

P
H

A
LT

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 C

O
U

R
S

E
, P

G
 6

4-
22

, T
Y

P
E

 1
 - 

C
.Y

.
25

.0
0

   
   

 
30

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
55

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
33

6.
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
41

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
29

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
25

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
10

. -
 2

-1
/2

" A
S

P
H

A
LT

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 IN

TE
R

M
E

D
IA

TE
 C

O
U

R
S

E
, P

G
 6

4-
22

, T
Y

P
E

 2
 - 

C
.Y

.
40

.0
0

   
   

 
34

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

13
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
33

0.
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

13
,2

08
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
29

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

11
,6

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
11

. -
 B

IT
U

M
IN

O
U

S
 P

R
IM

E
 C

O
A

T 
@

 0
.4

0 
G

A
L/

S
.Y

. O
V

E
R

 B
A

C
K

FI
LL

 - 
G

A
L

22
0.

00
   

  
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
26

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
21

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
12

. -
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T 
- S

.F
.

1,
20

0.
00

  
5.

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
84

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
5.

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
32

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
13

. -
 C

U
R

B
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T 
- L

.F
.

30
0.

00
   

  
22

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
23

.3
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

9,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

. -
 A

S
P

H
A

LT
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T 
- S

.Y
.

35
.0

0
   

   
 

59
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
2,

06
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

46
.6

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

63
3.

80
$ 

   
   

   
 

27
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
96

2.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
. -

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T 
- S

.Y
.

35
.0

0
   

   
 

58
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
2,

03
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

53
.6

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

87
8.

80
$ 

   
   

   
 

64
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
2,

24
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
. -

 G
R

A
V

E
L 

D
R

IV
E

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T 

- S
.Y

.
60

.0
0

   
   

 
12

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

75
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

.5
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

87
4.

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
18

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
08

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

. -
 8

" D
U

C
TI

LE
 IR

O
N

 W
A

TE
R

LI
N

E
 - 

L.
F.

1,
44

0.
00

  
67

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

96
,4

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
62

.6
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

90
,2

16
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
81

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

11
6,

64
0.

00
$ 

   
   

18
. -

 8
" W

A
TE

R
 V

A
LV

E
 - 

E
A

C
H

1.
00

   
   

   
1,

28
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
28

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

04
0.

44
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
04

0.
44

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

51
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
51

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
19

. -
 3

/4
" C

H
LO

R
IN

A
TI

O
N

 T
A

P
 - 

E
A

C
H

4.
00

   
   

   
32

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
30

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
40

0.
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

2.
36

$ 
   

   
   

 
32

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
29

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
20

. -
 1

" W
A

TE
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 - 

O
P

E
N

 C
U

T 
(N

E
A

R
 S

ID
E

 O
F 

S
TR

E
E

T)
 - 

L.
F.

12
0.

00
   

  
31

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
72

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
48

.0
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

5,
76

7.
20

$ 
   

   
   

 
32

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
84

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
21

. -
 1

" W
A

TE
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 - 

D
IR

E
C

TI
O

N
A

L 
B

O
R

E
 (F

A
R

 S
ID

E
 O

F 
S

TR
E

E
T)

 - 
L.

F.
24

0.
00

   
  

27
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

48
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

47
.1

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
11

,3
25

.6
0

$ 
   

   
  

32
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
7,

68
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

22
. -

 W
A

TE
R

 M
E

TE
R

, P
IT

S
, E

TC
. -

 E
A

C
H

10
.0

0
   

   
 

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

80
1.

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
8,

01
1.

10
$ 

   
   

   
 

73
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7,

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

23
. -

 C
U

R
B

 V
A

LV
E

S
, B

O
X

E
S

 - 
E

A
C

H
10

.0
0

   
   

 
28

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
23

2.
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
32

3.
10

$ 
   

   
   

 
27

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
24

. -
 8

" E
N

D
 P

LU
G

 - 
E

A
C

H
2.

00
   

   
   

28
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
56

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
7.

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
25

5.
54

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
32

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

25
. -

 2
2.

5 
D

E
G

R
E

E
 B

E
N

D
 - 

E
A

C
H

1.
00

   
   

   
52

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

52
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
15

9.
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
9.

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

21
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
26

. -
 4

5 
D

E
G

R
E

E
 B

E
N

D
 - 

E
A

C
H

6.
00

   
   

   
26

7.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
16

3.
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

97
9.

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
29

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
27

. -
 8

" X
 8

" T
E

E
 - 

E
A

C
H

1.
00

   
   

   
65

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

65
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
30

5.
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

30
5.

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
37

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

37
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
28

. -
 4

" T
A

P
P

IN
G

 S
LE

E
V

E
 A

N
D

 V
A

LV
E

 - 
E

A
C

H
1.

00
   

   
   

2,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
40

2.
52

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

40
2.

52
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
70

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

70
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

29
. -

 8
" X

 4
" R

E
D

U
C

E
R

 - 
E

A
C

H
1.

00
   

   
   

46
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
46

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
7.

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

7.
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
16

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

30
. -

 6
" T

A
P

P
IN

G
 S

LE
E

V
E

 A
N

D
 V

A
LV

E
 - 

E
A

C
H

2.
00

   
   

   
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

55
7.

38
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
11

4.
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

24
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
48

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
31

. -
 8

" X
 6

" R
E

D
U

C
E

R
 - 

E
A

C
H

2.
00

   
   

   
32

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

64
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

5.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

27
0.

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
16

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

32
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
32

. -
 1

2"
 T

A
P

P
IN

G
 S

LE
E

V
E

 W
IT

H
 8

" T
A

P
 A

N
D

 8
" V

A
LV

E
 - 

E
A

C
H

1.
00

   
   

   
3,

64
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
64

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

18
2.

99
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
18

2.
99

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

88
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
88

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
33

. -
 1

6"
 T

A
P

P
IN

G
 S

LE
E

V
E

 W
IT

H
 8

" T
A

P
 A

N
D

 8
" V

A
LV

E
 - 

E
A

C
H

1.
00

   
   

   
4,

08
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
08

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

87
1.

15
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
87

1.
15

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

86
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
86

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
34

. -
 6

" C
A

P
 - 

E
A

C
H

1.
00

   
   

   
35

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

35
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

.6
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

60
.6

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
81

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

81
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
35

. -
 F

IR
E

 H
Y

D
R

A
N

T 
A

S
S

E
M

B
LY

 IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 6
" V

A
LV

E
 A

N
D

 8
" X

 6
" T

E
E

 - 
E

A
C

H
4.

00
   

   
   

4,
33

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

,3
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

4,
39

7.
14

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

,5
88

.5
6

$ 
   

   
  

4,
42

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

,7
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

35
 It

em
s

To
ta

ls
21

2,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
22

3,
71

1.
62

$ 
   

   
24

5,
75

9.
50

$ 
   

   

Fi
nf

ro
ck

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

o.
, I

nc
.

VT
F 

Ex
ca

va
tio

n,
 L

LC
L.

J.
 D

eW
ee

se
 C

o.
, I

nc
.

Pr
op

os
al

 P
ag

e 
- I

te
m

 L
is

t 


